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Dear Stockholders,

2013 was an exciting turnaround year for Snap &utére, Inc. (“Snap,” “we,” “us” or “our”), duringvhich we started
to reverse a sequential quarterly trend of deangasivenue and active subscribers. We introdueeeral new
initiatives in support of our vision to “Eliminateoneliness,” with a renewed focus on execution iamatovement of
our application and operations. The results oftdel work of 2013 have already become apparetihelfiourth
quarter of 2013, we saw our first revenue growthearly two years. The momentum has continued@fa!, with
growth in our active subscriber count.

We enter 2014 with a leaner cost structure, a unapplication that matches users based on friemtigngerests in
common, and a sophisticated process for continyapimizing AYl.com’s user experience. The builgiblocks are
in place for a successful 2014, and we are asezkei ever about the future of Snap and AYl.com.

Key highlights for 2013 include:

* We rebranded AYIl.com (from AreYoulnterested.com) agbuilt the application’s user matching engine to
tap into Snap’s vast repository of social dataluidimg compatible interests, friends in common &iehds-
of-friends.

* We instituted a product testing framework that\aiais to test over 7,000 versions of AYl.com
simultaneously, resulting in continuous, data-driilprovement in user experience.

» We substantially cut expenses substantially byeaduheadcount and migrating technology operatfooms
a managed hosting data center to a co-locatedtyacil

 We introduced the “The Data of Dating” blog, whiths been picked up in several top-tier publications
including Time, USA Today, NPR, Glamour, and theM\¥¥éork Post.

* We announced a strategic partnership with Match, @rhancing the experience for AYl.com and
Match.com users.

Key highlights for the first quarter of 2014 inckid

* The first two months of 2014 have built on the fifmnndation established in 2013, with a 12% incedas
active subscribers from 78,000 as of December @13 2to 87,000 as of February 28, 2014.

e Hired COO Alex Harrington, who brings a successfatk record in mobile and Internet leadership.

Experimentation

We introduced a rigorous product development potest has delivered what we believe to be onbebest user
experiences in the interactive dating industry.ithiexperimentation” as a core value at Snap, wested in real-
time robust analytics and a world-class testingyeevork that enables us to deploy thousands of ti@mmof AYl.com
in order to optimize the experience for our us€rse experimentation process at Snap is called ‘GlCelebrate,
iterate, obliterate, and is one of our greatespiaptishments. This investment and commitment fmeerentation has
enabled us to achieve our engagement and conveysas while improving the user experience eachkwee



Advertising and Marketing

While we redesigned AYl.com, we kept advertisind amarketing levels low to conserve capital while flite was
optimized. As a consequence, we witnessed a @eicliaur subscriber and revenue base through ARIs3.
However, the enhancements and optimizations légcteases in user engagement and conversion vaied)
translated to increased advertising and marketiatpsand efficiency. Our subscriber base begamnctease in
September 2013, with three consecutive monthsaoéases beginning in December 2013. We believarepoised
for continued growth in 2014.

Our Vision and Values

During 2013, we refined our vision and values. @aion, which is designed to guide our decisiorkimg, is below:

Eliminate Loneliness: We build innovative solutions to make it fun andyeto meet new people in order to
enrich people’s lives.

We also refined our values, integrating them intactivities within Snap. Our values represenivhee do our jobs,
who we are, and how we plan to achieve our visioiicbminating Loneliness.” We articulated five mvalues that
guide our every decision:

Experiment

We use a data-driven method to make decisions kypethesize, experiment, learn and iterate. We fin
innovative solutions and question assumptions, évéey are longstanding. Even our most innovaidleas
are guided by experimentation and iterative steps.

Own It

Our passion comes through in how we work. If wessmaething that needs to be fixed, we take thatiie
to not only do it, but to do it well. When thatfised, we hunt down the next opportunity for impeowvent and
make it happen. This applies not only to our wankdlso to ourselves. We actively pursue self-mnpment
and make ourselves experts in our fields, whetfeby taking classes, reading forums or joininglkalubs.

Be Quick

Signed, sealed and delivered! We do things quiakly in MVP form. We have a bias for action and dpee
over perfection. We prefer an ugly but accurat@refmday, over a fancily formatted report tomorrae
faster we move, the faster we fail, the fasteraegn. To help us move quickly, we automate whereve
possible.

Plan & Execute

A goal without a plan is just a wish. We commitéan plans and processes and then follow throughem
to get results. We remain nimble. If we realizease heading in the wrong direction, we are quic&rtdrace
change, make a new plan, and get on a new course.



Collaborate

Great ideas can come from anyone, so we create aisd open environment where we are always
exchanging ideas. For collaboration to work, hreais as essential as being heard. That's why efe fiest to
understand, then to be understood. When we hitghlio the road, we focus on learning, not on blgmin

Since we value each other’s ideas, we are ableaoistellectually one moment, then grab beersttamgehe
next.

Final Thoughts

Although the last couple of years have been chgilfenfor Snap, we invested in the business foldhg-term and
decided not to settle for short-term solutions. WMééeve that 2014 will be a landmark year for Snapaddition to
continued growth in revenue and active subscridersg 2014, we expect to become cash flow posftiom
operating activities in the third quarter of 20M/e look forward to communicating our progress vgithckholders
over the coming weeks and months. Thank you for gontinued support.

Sincerely,

Clifford Lerner
President and Chief Executive Officer



Forward-L ooking Statements

The Annual Report contains “forward-looking statesé made under the “safe harbor” provisions of Rnivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that aresbd on current expectations, estimates, foreaadts
assumptions and are subject to risks and unceesitm/ords such as “anticipate,” “assume,” “beligévbudget,”
continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecst,” “goal,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,”“predict,”
“project,” “seek,” “should,” “began,” “target,” “wold” and variations of such words and similar eggiens are
intended to identify forward-looking statementsich forward-looking statements are subject to aertaks,
uncertainties and assumptions that may cause aetudts to differ materially from those expresbgdhe forward-
looking statements, including, but not limited ttee following: general economic, industry and madextor
conditions; our future growth and the ability tatailh additional capital or financing to execute business plan;
the ability to achieve break-even cash flow; thititglio grow revenue, decrease expenses and iserdege number
of active subscribers or new subscription traneastithe intense competition in the online datiragkatplace; the
ability to develop, establish and maintain a strbrand; the effect of any interruption or failurfeooir data center;
our ability to effectively manage its growth, indlog attracting and retaining qualified employes
circumstances that could disrupt the functioningwf application and websites. In evaluating trstagements, you
should carefully consider these risks and uncdiégirand those described under the headings “Mamagfs
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations” and “Risk Factors” in oumdial
Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 18nA@Q other Securities and Exchange Commissiorg§lin
All forward-looking statements speak only as of da¢e on which they are made. We undertake no atiig to
update any forward-looking statement or statemintsflect events or circumstances after the dateltich such
statement was made, except to the extent requireghlicable securities laws.
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Our Corporate Information

Snap Interactive, Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on July 19, 2005. Our
principal executive office is located at 462 7th Ave, 4th Floor, New York, New York 10018.

”»

Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “Snap,” “we,
“us,” “our,” and the “Company” refer to Snap Interactive, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

AYI, Snap, the Snap logo and other trademarks or service marks appearing in this report are the property of
Snap Interactive, Inc. Trade names, trademarks and service marks of other companies appearing in this report are the
property of their respective owners.

References in this report to “DAUs” and “MAUSs” mean daily active users and monthly active users,
respectively, of our application. Unless otherwise indicated, these metrics are based on information that is reported
by Facebook® and are internally derived metrics for users across all platforms through which our application is
accessed. References in this report to active subscribers mean subscribers who have prepaid for current access to
premium features of the AYI application and the term of whose subscription period has not yet expired. The metrics
for subscribers are based on internally-derived metrics across all platforms through which our application is
accessed.



Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this report constitute “forward-looking statements” as defined in Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), that are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and
assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Words such as “anticipate,” “assume,” “believe,” “budget,”
“continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “goal,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,”
“project,” “seek,” “should,” “began,” “target,” “would” and variations of such words and similar expressions are
intended to identify such forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on
which they are made. Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions
relating to factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in such statements,
including, without limitation, the following:

EEINT3 ELINNT3

EEINT3

° our ability to generate and sustain increased revenue levels and achieve profitability in the future;

° our heavy reliance on the Facebook platform to run our application and Facebook Inc.’s ability to
discontinue, limit or restrict access to its platform by us or our application, change its terms and
conditions or other policies or features, including restricting methods of collecting payments and
establish more favorable relationships with one or more of our competitors or develop an
application or feature that competes with our application;

° our ability to maintain good relationships with Apple Inc. and Google Inc.;

° our reliance on our President, Chief Executive Officer and sole director;

° the intense competition in the online dating industry;

° our reliance on a small percentage of our total users for substantially all of our revenue;

° our ability to develop, establish and maintain a strong brand;

° our ability to develop and market new technologies to respond to rapid technological changes;

° our ability to effectively manage our growth, including attracting and retaining qualified
employees;

° our ability to generate subscribers through advertising and marketing agreements with third party

advertising and marketing providers;

° our reliance on email campaigns to convert users to subscribers and to retain subscribers;

° the effect of any interruption or failure of our data center;

° the effect of an interruption or failure of our programming code, servers or technological
infrastructure;

° the effect of security breaches, computer viruses and computer hacking attacks;

° our ability to comply with laws and regulations regarding privacy and protection of user data;

° our reliance upon credit card processors and related merchant account approvals;

° governmental regulation or taxation of the online dating, social dating or Internet industries;

° the impact of any claim that we have infringed on intellectual property rights of others;

° our ability to protect our intellectual property rights;

° the risk that we might be deemed a “dating service” or an “Internet dating service” under various

state regulations;

° the possibility that our users or third parties may be physically or emotionally harmed following
interaction with other users;

il



° our ability to obtain additional capital or financing to execute our business plan; and
° our ability to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting.

For a more detailed discussion of these and other factors that may affect our business, see the discussion in
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included herein. We caution that the foregoing list of factors is not exclusive, and new factors may
emerge, or changes to the foregoing factors may occur, that could impact our business. We do not undertake any
obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether written or oral, relating to the matters discussed in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws.

il
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are an Internet company providing services in the expanding social dating market. We own and operate
a social dating software application under our AYT brand (formerly known as AreYoulnterested.com) that can be
accessed on Facebook®, mobile devices such as iPhone® and Android®, and a stand-alone website. Our application
is fully integrated across these gateways and incorporates the Facebook Connect® integration tool, which enables
users to easily “connect” their Facebook profile to our website. Since August 2007, AYT has been one of the leading
dating applications on Facebook based on the number of DAUs and MAUs.

As of February 28, 2014, we had more than 2.5 million MAUs of AYI across all of our platforms. We
primarily generate revenue from subscription fees and, as of February 28, 2014, we had approximately 87,000 active
subscribers. The number of our DAUs and MAUSs, which includes non-paying users and paying subscribers, varies
greatly on a daily and monthly basis, and is greater than the number of our active subscribers for any same
measurement period.

We believe that our extensive user base, which includes more than 25 million Facebook connected users
and more than 2.0 billion pieces of structured interest data, allows us to create a favorable experience for users
looking to meet people with mutual friends or similar interests.

Our Application

We have developed and published AYI, a social dating application that can be accessed on Facebook,
mobile devices such as iPhone and Android and a stand-alone website. Based on the number of DAUs and MAUS,
AYI is one of the leading social dating applications on Facebook and it attracts a demographically and
geographically diverse user base.

We have integrated AYI with Facebook so that the application imports information from a user’s Facebook
profile (with the user’s permission), including the user’s photos, friends and interest data. Using this information,
AYTI has designed features around mutual friends and interests that improve the online dating experience and more
closely mirror the way singles traditionally meet offline. AYI’s feature set is continually updated with new features
to increase user engagement, make users more social and to increase the number of users that are converted to
paying subscribers.

The majority of users have Facebook connected profiles, which allows them to easily import photos, likes
and interests from their Facebook profiles to create a personal profile on AYI in a few clicks. For users with
Facebook connected profiles, their AYI profiles are updated in real time as they add interests on Facebook. Users
can also join AYI without a Facebook connected profile, by creating a personal profile that is connected to their
email address. Once a profile has been created, AYI users are able to search for potential matches, including other
singles with mutual friends or similar interests.

AYT’s easy-to-use “browse” function allows users to view profiles of other users and indicate if they are
“interested” in a user by either clicking on a “yes” or “skip” button above the picture of that user or by sending a
message when viewing that user’s profile. Users are notified when another user has clicked “yes” on their profile or
if they have received a message from another user. AYI’s “friends of friends” function allows users to search for
other users that have mutual friends and its advanced search function allows users to view profiles of other users
with mutual friends or similar interests.

AYT operates on a “freemium” model, where certain application features are free to all users and other
features are only available to paid subscribers. All users are allowed to send create a profile, browse, search and
view other user’s profiles, send instant messages and send an initial message to any user. Unlimited messaging and
other premium features require a paid subscription. For additional information regarding these different feature sets,
please see the graphic below.



Member Benefits Free Premium

Create a profile V
Browse and click ‘Yes’ (v 4
Send first message to any user v
Send IM's (v 4
Unlimited messaging

Non-Premium users can respond to your messages

See who viewed your profile
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Application Development

Our application development processes are designed to enable us to rapidly and cost effectively develop
our application to meet the expectations and preferences of users and the requirements of the third party platforms
on which we offer our application. These processes include a sophisticated A/B testing framework that allows us to
run a significant number of statistically relevant tests on AYI at any given time. We can test new features, new
functionality, design changes, changes to our proprietary algorithms, etc. and compare the results to control groups
to see if they improve the conversion of users into paying subscribers. We have also integrated Splunk into our data
analytics and application development processes to provide a real-time granular analysis of user behavior and an
ability to “lock-in” features that outperform their relevant control groups.

The majority of our logins occur through third party platforms. We believe we provide value to these third
party platforms by (i) creating and maintaining user engagement on, and integrating with, the platforms, (ii) driving
traffic to the platforms to generate advertising revenue for such platforms, including through the placement of
advertisements on our application, and (iii) directly purchasing advertising from the platforms.

While the majority of our users continue to access the application through the Facebook platform, we have
seen significant increases in activity across our mobile platforms during 2013. For example, in December 2013,
approximately 30% of logins to AYI were made through a mobile device as compared to 16% of logins to AYI
being made through a mobile device in December 2012. We plan to continue to develop and support AYI on
Facebook, iPhone, Android, web and mobile web.

With our network of more than 2.0 million MAUs of AYT across all of our platforms as of February 28,
2014, along with the vast amount of data that we have accumulated for several years across multiple platforms, we
believe that leveraging this user base and data therefrom in conjunction with Facebook platform’s real-time
application programming interface allows us to create a one-of-a-kind experience for users looking to meet people
with mutual friends or similar interests.

Our Strengths

Since our inception, we have developed and are leveraging the following key strengths of our business
model:

° Differentiated Functionality. We have developed many different and popular social dating features
for AY]I, including the ability to search for other users that have mutual friends or similar interests.
AYT’s integration with Facebook allows users to incorporate these unique features into the online
dating experience by taking over 2.0 billion pieces of structured interest data provided through
over 25 million Facebook connected profiles and searching this data for matches using these
features.

° A/B Testing. Our application development processes include a sophisticated A/B testing
framework that allows us to run a significant number of statistically relevant tests on AYI at any
given time. We can test new features, new functionality, design changes, changes to our
proprietary algorithms and compare the results to control groups to see if they improve the

2



conversion of users into paying subscribers. We have also integrated Splunk Enterprise software
into our data analytics and application development processes to provide a real-time granular
analysis of user behavior and an ability to “lock-in” features that outperform their relevant control
groups.

° Large and Global Community of Users. As of March 1 2014, we had over 70 million installations,
25 million Facebook connected profiles and 2.0 million MAUs of AYI. Since August 2007, AYI
has been one of the leading social dating applications on Facebook based on the publicly reported
number of DAUs and MAUs. We believe that our extensive user base and number of Facebook
connected profiles allows us to create a favorable experience for users looking to meet people with
mutual friends or similar interests.

° Scalable Application and Operations. From March 2011 until March 2014, we grew our
operations from approximately 21 employees to approximately 44 employees (including 20
engineers), relocated our principal executive offices, hired a Chief Financial Officer and moved
our managed hosting data center to a co-located facility. In addition, we redesigned AYT to focus
on interest-based matching and officially launched the redesigned AYI in 2012. We anticipate
increasing our user base and revenues without substantially increasing our fixed costs and
expenses in the future.

° Powerful Network Effect. As more users install AYI and purchase subscriptions, we increase the
breadth and depth of potential matches for other users, attracting more users to AYI and enhancing
the value of our application to existing and future users and subscribers.

° Extensive Experience on Facebook. Since 2007, we have offered users a social dating application
through the Facebook platform. Since AY1 was one of the first social dating applications available
on Facebook, we have extensive experience with social networking and online dating, which has
allowed us to develop a social dating application with compelling and relevant features.

Our Strategy

Our strategy includes the following key components:

° Increase Our Subscriber Base. We plan to invest in user acquisition campaigns to promote AYI
and to increase the number of users and paid subscribers. We believe that if we substantially
increase the number of users and paid subscribers and, therefore, our revenues, we will generate
positive cash flow from operations.

° New Feature Development. We plan to continue to develop and test new features for AYI to
increase user engagement, make users more social and to increase the number of users that are
converted to paying subscribers.

° Build a Recognizable Brand. We have expanded our marketing department and have utilized
advertising, blogging and other social media to build a recognizable social dating brand. We
expect that creating a recognizable brand will increase visibility and trust with our users and lead
to higher user conversion and retention rates.

Marketing Strategy

Our initial user base for the AYI brand was cultivated primarily through Facebook’s viral channels. Our
current marketing activities aim to raise awareness of the AYT brand and attract subscribers by promoting the unique
content and quality of our application and services. We primarily advertise through Internet and mobile advertising
and run hundreds of user acquisition campaigns at any given time, targeting various classifications of users. We
have two full-time media buyers and in-house tools to track and measure the success of our advertising campaigns.

Payment Options

Our users have a variety of methods by which to purchase subscriptions to AYI. Users can pay by credit
card, electronic check, PayPal, Fortumo, or as an In-App purchase through Apple Inc.’s iPhone App Store. Pursuant
to Apple Inc.’s terms of service, Apple Inc. retains 30% of the revenue that is generated from sales on our iPhone
application through In-App purchases in the United States. Regardless of which payment method is utilized, users
may access AYI through any of the gateways we offer.



Competition

We face substantial competition from online dating websites such as eHarmony.com, POF.com, Match.com
or other IAC/InterActiveCorp. properties, as well as Facebook application providers in the online dating space such
as Zoosk, Badoo, Cupid and MeetMe. We believe that users often utilize multiple dating websites or applications,
and the use of one dating website or application is not necessarily to the exclusion of others.

Achieving a critical mass of subscribers is crucial for online dating websites and online dating applications.
As a result of our user base, we believe we are well-positioned to continue as a leader in social dating. We believe
that our user base also allows us to compete favorably in the marketplace with future applications that we may offer.
Additionally, we seek to offer applications and services that are unique in the industry, superior in quality, and more
appealing than those of our competitors. Additionally, we believe that we have the tools and certain inherent
efficiencies to attract new users through Facebook at a lower cost per subscriber than certain of our traditional online
dating competitors. We also believe that the industry offers substantial room for growth as social networking
application platforms and mobile platforms continue to expand and as the Internet becomes more of a socially-
acceptable method for finding a mate.

Patent and Trademarks

To establish and protect our proprietary rights, we rely on a combination of trademarks, copyrights, trade
secrets, license agreements, patent applications, confidentiality agreements and other contractual rights. We have
two registered trademarks in the United States for “Snap Interactive”; three registered trademarks for “Are You
Interested?” and variations thereof in the United States, including several pending applications and registrations in
other countries; a registered trademark for a question-mark-heart logo in the United States and a pending application
for “ayi” in the United States. We are also pursuing patents related to certain feature sets on the AYI brand currently
under development.

Governmental Regulations

We are subject to a number of U.S. federal and state laws and regulations that affect companies conducting
business on the Internet, many of which are still evolving and being litigated in the courts and could be interpreted in
ways that could harm our business. These laws and regulations may involve user privacy, data protection, content,
intellectual property, distribution, electronic contracts and other communications, competition, protection of minors,
consumer protection, taxation and online payment services. In particular, we are subject to federal and state laws
regarding privacy and protection of user data, which are constantly evolving and can be subject to significant
change. We are also subject to diverse and evolving laws and regulations in other countries in which we operate.
The application and interpretation of these laws and regulations are often uncertain, particularly in the new and
rapidly-evolving industry in which we operate. Because our dating application is accessible worldwide and used by
residents of some foreign countries, foreign jurisdictions may claim that we must comply with foreign laws, even in
jurisdictions in which we have no local business entity, employees or infrastructure.

We are also subject to federal laws and regulations regarding content, privacy and the protection of user
data, including The Communications Decency Act of 1996, as amended (“The Communications Decency Act”), The
Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act of 1998, as amended, The Digital Millennium Copyright Act, The
Electronic Communications Privacy Act of 1986, as amended, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001, and the Controlling
the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography And Marketing (“CAN-SPAM”) Act of 2003, among others. The Digital
Millennium Copyright Act limits our liability as an online service provider for linking to or hosting third-party
content that infringes copyrights. The Communications Decency Act provides statutory protections to online service
providers like us who distribute third-party content. The Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act restricts the
ability of online service providers to collect personal information from children under 13. Congress, the Federal
Trade Commission (“FTC”) and many states have promulgated laws and regulations regarding email advertising,
including the CAN-SPAM Act. Any changes in these laws or judicial interpretations narrowing the protections of
these laws may subject us to increased risk, increased costs of compliance, and limits on the operation of certain
parts of our business.

Growing public concern about privacy and the use of personal information may subject us to increased
regulatory scrutiny. The FTC has, over the last few years, begun investigating companies that have used personally
identifiable information in a deceptive or unfair manner or in violation of a posted privacy policy. If we are accused
of violating the terms of our privacy policy, we may be forced to expend significant financial and managerial
resources to defend against an FTC enforcement action. Our user database holds the personal information of our
users and subscribers residing in the United States and other countries, and we could be sued by those users if any of

4



the information is misappropriated. Further, Connecticut, New York, Florida, Texas and New Jersey each have
enacted legislation requiring us to display safety warnings and disclosures to users that we do not conduct
background checks.

In addition, many states have passed laws requiring notification to users when there is a security breach for
personal data resulting in unauthorized disclosure, such as California’s Information Practices Act. Nevada has
enacted a law prohibiting businesses from transferring a customer’s personal information through an electronic
transmission, unless that information is encrypted. Massachusetts has adopted regulations that require businesses to
encrypt personal data sent over the Internet. In addition, the Massachusetts law also requires encryption of data on
laptops, flash drives, and other portable devices. Both of these laws purport to apply to anyone who owns, stores, or
maintains personal information about those states’ residents. Other states are considering enacting similar
legislation. The costs of compliance with these state laws may increase in the future as a result of changes in
interpretation. Any failure by us to adequately protect our users’ privacy and data could result in loss of user
confidence in our application and services and ultimately in a loss of subscribers, which could adversely affect our
business.

There are a number of legislative proposals pending before the U.S. Congress and various state legislative
bodies concerning data protection that could, if adopted, have an adverse effect on our business. We are unable to
determine if and when such legislation may be adopted. Many jurisdictions, including the European Union, have
adopted breach notification and other data protection notification laws designed to prevent unauthorized disclosure
of personally identifiable information. The interpretation and application of data protection laws in the United
States, Europe and elsewhere are still uncertain and in flux. It is possible that these laws may be interpreted and
enforced in a manner that is inconsistent with our current data practices.

While online personals services are not currently required to verify the age or identity of members, or to
run criminal background checks, legislation in this area has been proposed over the last few years in Ohio, Texas,
California, Michigan, New Jersey, Florida and Virginia. Companies that provide personals services are not currently
subject to the same type of regulation as companies deemed “dating service” providers. However, if a court holds
that we are legally providing “dating services” as defined in the relevant regulations, we may be required to comply
with additional state regulations.

In addition, rising concern about the use of social networking technologies for illegal conduct may in the
future produce legislation or other governmental action that could require changes to our application or restrict or
impose additional costs upon the conduct of our business. These regulatory and legislative developments, including
excessive taxation, may prevent or significantly limit our ability to expand our business.

Employees

As of February 28, 2014, we had 44 employees, all of whom are employed on a full-time basis. We believe
that our future success depends in part on our continued ability to hire, assimilate and retain qualified personnel.

Executive Officers

The number of members of our Board of Directors may be fixed from time to time by the majority of the
entire Board of Directors and currently consists of one director. Clifford Lerner has been our sole director since his
appointment upon the formation of the Company. Each director that is elected at a future annual meeting of
stockholders, and each director that is elected to fill a vacancy or newly created directorship, shall hold a term of
office that expires at the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor has been elected and qualified.
Our executive officers are appointed by our Board of Directors and hold office until removed by the Board of
Directors.

The following table and text sets forth the name, age and position with respect to our sole director and
executive officers as of February 28, 2014:

Name Age Position
Clifford Lerner 36 President, Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Jon D. Pedersen, Sr. 43 Chief Financial Officer

Alexander Harrington 42 Chief Operating Officer



CLIFFORD LERNER is our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors.
Mr. Lerner has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since founding the Company in 2005 and served
as our principal financial officer and principal accounting officer from 2005 to October 2011. He has also served on
our Board of Directors since 2005. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr. Lerner spent his professional career from 2000 to
2005 at Lehman Brothers Inc. as an Analyst in its Equities division. Mr. Lerner worked as an Analyst in the Product
Management Group where his duties included, among other things, coordinating the morning and afternoon equity
research calls. Mr. Lerner has a strong knowledge and understanding of the online dating and social dating industry
and has managed the development and growth for all of our applications and websites since their inception. Mr.
Lerner received a bachelor’s degree in applied economics and business management from Cornell University.

Through his prior service on our Board of Directors and as our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lerner
possesses knowledge and experience in the online dating and social dating industries that aids him in efficiently and
effectively identifying and executing our strategic priorities.

JON D. PEDERSEN, SR. is our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Pedersen has served as our Chief Financial
Officer since October 2011. Mr. Pedersen served as Senior Vice President — Controller from September 2008 to
August 2011 and Vice President — Assistant Controller from May 2005 to September 2008 at Warner Music Group.
Warner Music Group is a music company with interests in recorded music, music publishing and artist services that
was acquired by Access Industries, Inc. in July 2011. Mr. Pedersen also previously served as Chief Financial
Officer, Director and Assistant Director of WestLB Securities Inc., a New York based broker-dealer and subsidiary
of WestLB AG from July 2000 to May 2005, and as Director from April 2003 to May 2005 and as Assistant
Director from July 2000 to April 2003. Mr. Pedersen also previously served as Vice President for Global
Management Reporting and Associate — Fixed Income Derivatives at Goldman, Sachs & Co. from April 2000 to
July 2000 and July 1998 to April 2000, respectively. Prior to July 1998, Mr. Pedersen served as a Senior Financial
Analyst and Senior Accountant at Price Waterhouse LLP in Stamford, Connecticut. Mr. Pedersen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from Columbia Business School and a bachelor’s degree in business
administration with an emphasis in accounting from the University of Connecticut.

ALEXANDER HARRINGTON is our Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Harrington was appointed as our
Chief Operating Officer in February 2014. Mr. Harrington has served as Co-Founder and Senior Advisor to
Indicative, a business analytics software-as-a service provider since May 2013. Prior to Indicative, Mr. Harrington
also served as Chief Executive Officer of MeetMoi from June 2009 to November 2013, a social dating mobile
platform, prior to the sale of MeetMoi to Match.com. Mr. Harrington previously served as the Senior Vice President
of Strategy and Operations for Zagat Survey from 2004 to 2008, where he oversaw a transformation of the digital
business which ultimately culminated in the company’s sale to Google. In prior roles, Mr. Harrington served as the
Senior Director of New Business Development at Sony BMG Entertainment and as an associate and analyst in
investment banking at The Beacon Group and Smith Barney, respectively. Mr. Harrington holds a Master’s of
Business Administration degree from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania and a Bachelor’s degree
of Arts in History from Williams College.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

The risks below are those that we believe are the material risks that we currently face, but are not the only
risks facing us and our business. If any of these risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have a history of losses and may not achieve profitability in the future.

We incurred a net loss of approximately $4.0 million and $4.0 million, and used approximately $4.2
million and $3.4 million of cash in operating activities during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. We will need to generate and sustain increased revenue levels in future periods in order to become
profitable, and, even if we do, we may not be able to maintain or increase our level of profitability. We may incur
significant operating losses in the future for a number of reasons, including marketing and advertising expenses and
the risks described herein, and unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications and delays and other unknown risks.
If we are unable to achieve profitability in the future, it will have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.



Our heavy reliance on Facebook may negatively affect our business.

Facebook is the primary third-party platform on which our application operates. During 2012 and 2013, we
generated substantially all of our revenue from subscribers acquired through the Facebook platform and expect to
continue to do so in the foreseeable future.

We are subject to Facebook, Inc.’s standard terms and conditions for application developers, which govern
the development, promotion, distribution, operation and use of our application on the Facebook platform.
Accordingly, we are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties and our business would be harmed if:

° Facebook, Inc. discontinues, limits or restricts access to its platform by us or our application;

° Facebook, Inc. changes its terms and conditions or other policies and features, including
restricting the method of collecting payments through the Facebook platform; or

° Facebook, Inc. establishes more favorable relationships with one or more of our competitors or
develops an application or feature that competes with our application.

If any of these actions occur, they could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

We derive a portion of our revenue from the Apple and Google platforms, and if we are unable to maintain a good
relationship with Apple Inc. or Google Inc., our business could suffer.

A portion of our revenue, primarily our revenue from mobile platforms, is derived from Apple Inc.’s iOS®
and Google Inc.’s Android platforms and we believe that we have a good relationship with Apple Inc. and Google
Inc. Any deterioration in our relationship with either Apple Inc. or Google Inc. could materially harm our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

We are subject to each of Apple Inc.’s and Google Inc.’s standard terms and conditions for application
developers, which govern the promotion, distribution and operation of our application on their respective storefronts.
Each of Apple Inc. and Google Inc. has broad discretion to change its standard terms and conditions. In addition,
these standard terms and conditions can be vague and subject to changing interpretations by Apple Inc. or Google
Inc. In addition, each of Apple Inc. and Google Inc. has the right to prohibit a developer from distributing
applications on the storefront if the developer violates the standard terms and conditions. In the event that either
Apple Inc. or Google Inc. ever determines that we are in violation of its standard terms and conditions and prohibits
us from distributing our application on its storefront, it could materially harm our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

We also rely on the continued function of the Apple App Store and the Google Play Store, as a portion of
our revenue is derived from these two digital storefronts. There have been occasions in the past when these digital
storefronts were unavailable for short periods of time or where there have been issues with the In-App purchasing
functionality from the storefront. In the event that either the Apple App Store or the Google Play Store is
unavailable or if In-App purchasing functionality from the storefront is non-operational for a prolonged period of
time, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our future success is dependent, in part, on the performance and continued service of Clifford Lerner, our
President, Chief Executive Officer and sole director. Without his continued service, we may be forced to interrupt or
eventually cease our operations.

We are dependent to a great extent upon the experience, abilities and continued service of Clifford Lerner,
our President, Chief Executive Officer and sole director. The loss of his services would substantially affect our
business operations and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial
condition.

As a social dating company, we are in the intensely competitive online dating industry and any failure to attract new
users and subscribers could diminish or suspend our development and possibly cease our operations.

The online dating industry is highly competitive and has few barriers to entry. If we are unable to
efficiently and effectively attract new users and subscribers as a result of intense competition or a saturated market,
we may not be able to continue the development and enhancement of our application and our website or become
profitable on a consistent basis in the future.



Important factors affecting our ability to successfully compete include:

° our ability to hire and retain talented employees, including technical employees, executives, and
marketing experts;

° competition for acquiring users that could result in increased user acquisition costs;

° reliance upon the platforms through which our application is accessed and the platforms’ ability to
control our activities on such platforms;

° our ability to innovate in our ever-changing industry.

We face substantial competition from online dating websites such as eHarmony.com, POF.com, Match.com
or other TAC/InterActiveCorp. properties, as well as Facebook application providers in the online dating space such
as Zoosk, Badoo, Cupid and MeetMe.

Many of our current and potential competitors offer similar services, have longer operating histories,
significantly greater capital, financial, technical, marketing and other resources and larger user or subscriber bases
than we do. These factors may allow our competitors to more quickly respond to new or emerging technologies and
changes in user preferences. These competitors may engage in more extensive research and development efforts,
undertake more far-reaching marketing campaigns and adopt more aggressive subscription prices that may allow
them to build larger user and paying subscriber bases. Our competitors may develop applications or services that are
equal or superior to our application or that achieve greater market acceptance than our application. In addition, new
and different types of social networking may also increase in popularity at the expense of online dating. These
activities could attract users and subscribers away from our application and website, reduce our market share and
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We rely on a small portion of our total users for nearly all of our revenue.

Compared to the total number of users in any period, only a small portion of our users are paying
subscribers. We primarily generate revenue through subscription sales to this small portion of users and secondarily
generate revenue through paid advertisements. Users discontinue the use of our application in the ordinary course of
business and to sustain our revenue levels, we must attract, retain and increase the number of users or more
effectively monetize our existing users. To retain existing users, and particularly those users who are paying
subscribers, we must devote significant resources so that our application retains their interest. If we fail to grow or
sustain the number of our users, or if the rates at which we attract and retain existing users declines or the rate at
which users become paying subscribers declines, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptions over the subscription term, downturns or upturns in subscription
sales may not be immediately reflected in our results of operations or financial condition.

We recognize subscription revenue from customers monthly over the subscription term, and subscriptions
are offered in durations of one-, three-, and six-month terms. As a result, much of the subscription revenue we report
in each quarter is deferred revenue from subscription agreements entered into during previous quarters.
Consequently, a decline in new or renewed subscriptions in any one quarter will not necessarily be reflected in the
revenue for that quarter and will negatively affect our revenue in future quarters. In addition, we might not be able to
immediately adjust our costs and expenses to reflect these reduced revenues. Accordingly, the effect of significant
downturns in user acceptance of our application may not be fully reflected in our results of operations until future
periods. Our subscription model also makes it difficult for us to quickly increase our revenue through additional
sales in any period, as revenue from new subscribers must be recognized over the subscription term.

Our business depends on developing, establishing and maintaining a strong brand. If we are unable to maintain and
enhance our brand, we may be unable to expand or retain our user and paying subscriber bases.

We believe that developing, establishing and maintaining awareness of our AYI brand is critical to our
efforts to achieve widespread acceptance of our application and is an important element to expanding our user and
subscriber bases. Successful promotion of our AYI brand will depend largely on the effectiveness of our advertising
and marketing efforts and on our ability to provide a reliable and useful application at competitive prices. If paying
subscribers do not perceive our application to be of high quality, or if our application is not favorably received by
users and subscribers, the value of our brand could diminish, thereby decreasing the attractiveness of our application
to users and subscribers. In addition, advertising and marketing activities may not yield increased revenue, and even



if they do, any increased revenue may not offset the expenses we incurred in building our brand. If we fail to
successfully promote and maintain our brand, or incur substantial expenses in unsuccessfully attempting to promote
and maintain our brand, we may fail to attract enough new subscribers or retain our existing subscribers to the extent
necessary to realize a sufficient return on our advertising and marketing activities, and it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

The online dating industry is characterized by rapid technological change and the development of new applications
and websites, and if we fail to develop and market new technologies rapidly or timely develop and launch new
applications and websites, we may not become profitable in the future.

The online dating industry is characterized by rapid technological change and the development of new
applications that could render our existing application and website obsolete. The development of our application and
website entails significant technical and business risks. We may be unable to successfully use new technologies
effectively, adapt our application and website to user preferences or needs or timely develop and launch new
applications. If our management is unable to adapt in a timely manner in response to changing market conditions or
user trends and preferences, we may never become consistently profitable and we may face limited market
acceptance of newly developed applications, which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues.

If we fail to effectively manage our growth or attract and have qualified employees, our business, results of
operations or financial condition could be harmed.

We continue to experience growth in our headcount and operations, which will continue to place significant
demands on our management, operations and finances. As of February 28, 2014, approximately 43% of our
employees had been with us for less than one year and approximately 66% of our employees had been with us for
less than two years. As we continue to grow, we must expend significant resources to identify, hire, integrate,
develop, motivate and retain a number of qualified employees, including certain highly skilled technical employees.
If we fail to effectively manage our employment needs and successfully integrate our new hires, our ability to launch
new applications and enhance or support our existing application could suffer and it could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our business depends in large part upon the availability of advertising space through a variety of media.

We depend upon the availability of advertising space through a variety of media, including third party
applications on platforms such as Facebook, to recruit new users and subscribers, generate activity from existing
users and subscribers and direct traffic to our application. The availability of advertising space varies, and a shortage
of advertising space in any particular media or on any particular platform, or the elimination of a particular medium
on which we advertise, could limit our ability to generate new subscribers, generate activity from existing
subscribers or direct traffic to our application, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our social dating application relies heavily on email campaigns. We face a risk that any disruptions in or
restrictions on the sending or receipt of emails, or any increase in the associated costs could adversely affect our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our emails are an important driver of our subscribers’ activities. We send a large volume of emails to our
subscribers notifying them of a variety of activities on our application, such as new matches. We face a risk that
service providers or email applications may block bulk email transmissions or otherwise experience technical
difficulties that result in our inability to successfully deliver emails to our users and subscribers. Third parties may
also block our emails as spam, impose restrictions on, or start to charge for, the delivery of emails through their
email systems. Without the ability to email these users and subscribers, we may have limited means of inducing
users and subscribers to return to and utilize our website and application. Due to the importance of email to our
business, any disruptions or restrictions on the distribution or receipt of emails or increase in the associated costs
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Any interruption or failure of our data center could impair our ability to effectively provide our application, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our corporate headquarters and our primary data center are located in New York, New York. While we
own the equipment at our data center, we rent space and bandwidth from a co-located facility. Our application
depends on the continuing operation of our data center and any damage to or failure of our data center could result in
interruptions in our services. Our data center is vulnerable to damage or interruption from break-ins, sabotage, acts
of vandalism, terrorist attacks, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses or cyber-



attacks and other unforeseeable events. Any interruption in our service could damage our reputation, cause our users
and subscribers to terminate their use of our application and prevent us from gaining additional business from
current or future users and subscribers, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Interruption or failure of our programming code, servers, or technological infrastructure could hurt our ability to
effectively provide our application, which could damage our reputation and harm our results of operations.

The availability of our application depends on the continued operation of our programming code,
databases, servers and technological infrastructure. Any damage to, or failure of, our systems could result in
interruptions in service for our application, which could damage our brand and have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition. Our systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from
terrorist attacks, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses, computer denial of service
attacks or other attempts to harm our systems. Some of our systems are not fully redundant, and our disaster
recovery planning cannot account for all eventualities.

Security breaches, computer viruses and computer hacking attacks could harm our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

Security breaches, computer malware and computer hacking attacks have become more prevalent in our
industry. Any security breach caused by hacking, including efforts to gain unauthorized access to our applications,
servers or websites, or to cause intentional malfunctions or loss or corruption of data, software, hardware or other
computer equipment, and the inadvertent transmission of computer viruses could harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Though it is difficult to determine what harm may directly result from any
specific interruption or breach, any failure to maintain performance, reliability, security and availability of our
application, servers or website may result in significant expenses, loss of revenue and have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

If there are changes in regulations regarding privacy and protection of user data, or if we fail to comply with such
laws, we may face claims brought against us under any of these regulations and it could adversely affect our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

Federal, state and international laws and regulations govern the collection, use, retention, sharing and
security of data that we receive from and about our users. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with
regulations of privacy and protection of user data or with any data-related consent orders, Federal Trade
Commission requirements or orders, or other federal, state, or international privacy or consumer protection-related
laws, regulations or industry self-regulatory principles could result in proceedings or actions against us by
governmental entities or others, which could potentially have an adverse effect on our business. As a result of these
regulations, we may be subject to a claim or class-action lawsuit regarding online services. The successful assertion
of these claims against us could result in potentially significant monetary damages, diversion of management
resources and require us to make significant payments and incur substantial legal expenses. Any claims with respect
to violation of privacy or user data brought against us may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

We are exposed to risks associated with credit card processors and related merchant account approvals that, if not
properly addressed, could increase our operating expenses or preclude us from accepting credit cards as a method

of payment.

We depend on the ability to accept credit and debit card payments from our subscribers and the related
merchant account approval to process subscription payments. Our reliance on credit card and related merchant
account approvals exposes us to fraud and credit card chargebacks. We have suffered losses and may continue to
suffer losses as a result of subscriptions placed with fraudulent credit card data as well as users who chargeback their
purchases. Under current credit card practices, a merchant is liable for fraudulent credit card transactions when, as is
the case with the transactions we process, that merchant does not obtain a cardholder’s signature. Our failure to
adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions and keep our chargebacks under an acceptable threshold
would result in significantly higher credit card-related costs and, therefore, increase our operating expenses and
might preclude us from accepting credit cards as a means of payment.
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If government regulation or taxation of the online dating, social dating or Internet industries increase, it may
adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We may be subject to additional operating restrictions and government regulations in the future. Companies
engaging in e-commerce, online dating, social dating and related businesses face uncertainty related to future
government regulation of the Internet. Due to the rapid growth and widespread use of the Internet, federal and state
governments have enacted and are considering various laws and regulations relating to the Internet in areas
including, but not limited to, billing practices, privacy, online safety and taxation. Furthermore, the application of
existing laws and regulations to Internet companies remains somewhat unclear. The adoption of new laws and
regulations could adversely affect the growth, popularity or use of the Internet, including laws limiting Internet
neutrality, decreasing the demand for our application and increase our cost of doing business. Our business, results
of operations or financial condition may be negatively affected by new laws, and such existing or new regulations
may expose us to substantial compliance costs and liabilities and may impede the growth in use of the Internet. In
addition, sales tax for business conducted on the Internet is rapidly being legislated in the various states and abroad.
We may incur substantial liabilities or expenses necessary to comply with these laws and regulations or penalties for
any failure to comply.

If we are subject to intellectual property infringement claims, it could cause us to incur significant expenses, pay
substantial damages and prevent service delivery.

Third parties may claim that our application or services infringe or violate their intellectual property rights.
Any such claims could cause us to incur significant expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, could require
that we pay substantial damages and prevent us from using licensed technology that may be fundamental to our
application and website. Even if we were to prevail, any litigation regarding intellectual property could be costly and
time-consuming and divert the attention of our management and key personnel from our business operations. We
maintain insurance to protect against intellectual property infringement claims and resulting litigation, but such
insurance may not be sufficient to cover all potential claims, liability or expenses. We may also be obligated to
indemnify our business partners in any such litigation, which could further exhaust our resources. Furthermore, as a
result of an intellectual property challenge, we may be prevented from providing some of our services unless we
enter into royalty, license or other agreements. We may not be able to obtain such agreements at all or on terms
acceptable to us, and as a result, we may be precluded from offering our application and services.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to compete with competitors
developing similar technologies.

Our success and ability to compete are often dependent upon the development of intellectual property for
our application and website. While we rely on copyright, trade secret and trademark law to protect our intellectual
property, we believe that factors such as the technological and creative skills of our employees, frequent
enhancements to our application and reliable maintenance are more essential to establishing a superior application.
There can be no assurance that other persons will not develop intellectual property that is similar or superior to our
intellectual property. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy
or otherwise obtain and use our technology, making it more difficult for us to compete.

We face risks of litigation and regulatory actions if we are deemed a dating service or Internet dating service.

In certain states, companies that provide dating services or Internet dating services are subject to various
regulations. Because our application and website promote social dating, we could be exposed to regulation as a
dating or Internet dating service. If we were considered to be a dating service or Internet dating service in any of the
jurisdictions in which we operate, we might be required to comply with regulations that would require us to, among
other things, (i) provide language in our contracts that would allow users to rescind their contracts within a certain
timeframe, demand reimbursement of a portion of the subscription price if the user dies during the term of the
contract and cancel their subscription in the event of disability or relocation and (ii) provide disclosure regarding our
screening practices and warnings on our application and website regarding the dangers associated with the use of our
application. If a legal authority determines that we have provided and are providing dating services or Internet
dating services that are regulated by certain states, we could be deemed to be out of compliance with such
regulations and could be liable for any damages as a result of our past non-compliance, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We face certain risks related to the physical and emotional safety of users and third parties.

We cannot control the actions of our users in their communications or physical actions. There is a
possibility that users or third parties could be physically or emotionally harmed following interaction with another
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user. We warn our users that we do not screen other users and, given our lack of physical presence, we do not take
any action to ensure personal safety on a meeting between users or subscribers arranged following contact initiated
via our application or website. If an unfortunate incident of this nature occurred in a meeting of two people
following contact initiated on our application or website or a website of one of our competitors, any resulting
negative publicity could materially and adversely affect us or the online dating industry in general. Any such
incident involving our application or website could damage our reputation and our brand, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. In addition, the affected users or
third parties could initiate legal action against us, which could divert management attention from operations, cause
us to incur significant expenses, whether we are successful or not, and damage our reputation.

We may need additional capital to execute our business plan. If we do not obtain additional financing, it could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We might need to raise additional capital or financing through debt or equity offerings to support our
expansion, marketing efforts and application development programs in the future. We might require additional
capital or financing to:

° our ability to hire and retain talented employees, including technical employees, executives, and
marketing experts;

° effectuate our long-term growth strategy and expand our application development programs; and
° market and advertise our application to attract more paying subscribers.

We may be unable to obtain future capital or financing on favorable terms or at all. If we cannot obtain
additional capital or financing, we will need to reduce, defer or cancel application development programs, planned
initiatives, marketing or advertising expenses or costs and expenses. The failure to obtain additional capital or
financing on favorable terms, if at all, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. This material weakness, if
not corrected, could affect the reliability of our financial statements and have other adverse consequences.

Under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), we are
required to furnish a report by our management on internal control over financial reporting. This report must
contain, among other matters, an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting,
including a statement as to whether or not our internal control over financial reporting is effective. This assessment
must include disclosure of any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by our
management.

We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2013, as disclosed in “Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.” We determined that we had a material weakness with
respect to the lack of an independent audit committee, which would provide oversight of our officers, operations and
financial reporting function. Failure to have effective internal control over financial reporting could impair our
ability to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis and could lead to a restatement of our financial
statements. If, as a result of deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, we cannot provide reliable
financial statements, our business decision processes may be adversely affected, our business and results of
operations could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information and our ability to
obtain additional financing, or additional financing on favorable terms, could be adversely affected. In addition,
failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in investigations or sanctions by
regulatory authorities.

We can give no assurances that we will be able to remediate the material weakness identified or that any
additional material weaknesses will not arise in the future due to our failure to implement and maintain adequate
internal control over financial reporting. In addition, even if we are successful in strengthening our controls and
procedures, those controls and procedures may not be adequate to prevent or identify irregularities or ensure the fair
presentation of our financial statements included in our periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”).
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Risks Related to our Common Stock

Our results of operations are volatile and difficult to predict, and our stock price may decline if we fail to meet the
expectations of shareholders.

Our revenue and results of operations could vary significantly from period-to-period and year-to-year and
may fail to match our past performance because of a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control.
Any of these events could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate. Factors that may contribute to
the variability of our results of operations include:

° changes in expectations as to our future financial performance;

° announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic
partnerships or capital commitments;

° market acceptance of a new application and enhancements to our existing application by us or our
competitors;

° the amount of advertising and marketing that is available and spent on user acquisition campaigns;

° disruptions in the availability of our application on third party platforms;

° actual or perceived violations of privacy obligations and compromises of subscriber data;

° the entrance of new competitors in our market whether by established companies or the entrance

of new companies;

° additions or departures of key personnel and the cost of attracting and retaining application
developers and other software engineers; and

° general market conditions, including market volatility.

Given the rapidly evolving industry in which we operate, our historical results of operations may not be
useful in predicting our future results of operations. In addition, metrics available from third parties regarding our
industry and the performance of our application may not be indicative of our future financial performance.

Our common stock is usually thinly traded, you may be unable to sell at or near ask prices or at all and the price of
our common stock may be volatile.

The shares of our common stock have usually been thinly-traded on the OTCQB Marketplace (the
“OTCQB”), meaning that the number of persons interested in purchasing our common stock at or near ask prices at
any given time may be relatively small or non-existent. This situation is attributable to a number of factors,
including the fact that we are a small company that is relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers,
institutional investors and others in the investment community that generate or influence sales volume. As a
consequence, there may be periods of several days or more when trading activity in our shares is minimal or non-
existent, as compared to a seasoned issuer that has a large and steady volume of trading activity that will generally
support continuous sales without an adverse effect on stock price. A broader or more active public trading market
for our common stock may not develop or be sustained, and the current trading level of our common stock may not
be sustained. Due to these conditions, you may be unable to sell your common stock at or near ask prices or at all if
you desire to sell shares of common stock.

Because of the limited trading market for our common stock, and because of the possible price volatility,
you may not be able to sell your shares of common stock when you desire to do so. The inability to sell your shares
in a rapidly declining market may substantially increase your risk of loss because of such illiquidity and because the
price for our common stock may suffer greater declines because of its price volatility.

Clifford Lerner’s control may prevent you from directing the course of our operations and may affect the price of
our common stock.

Clifford Lerner beneficially owned 30,250,000 shares of common stock as of February 28, 2014. As long
as Mr. Lerner beneficially owns more than 50% of our outstanding shares, he will be able to elect our entire Board
of Directors, control all matters that require a stockholder vote (such as mergers, acquisitions and other business
combinations) and exercise control over our management and operations. This concentration of ownership could
result in a reduction in value to the common stock you own because of ineffective voting power, and could delay or
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prevent us from undergoing a change of control in the future on terms that other stockholders may desire. In
addition, the interests of Mr. Lerner and our minority stockholders may not always be the same, and this
concentration of voting power may lead to stockholder votes that are inconsistent with the best interests of our
minority stockholders or our best interests as a whole.

The large number of shares issuable upon exercise of warrants could have an adverse effect on our stock price.

In January 2011, we issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,380,000 shares of common stock with
an exercise price of $2.50 per share to investors and a placement agent. The price of our common stock could
significantly decline if such persons elect to exercise their warrants and sell shares in the market at times when there
are not a corresponding number of investors willing to purchase such shares at the asked prices. In addition, the
large number of outstanding warrants may cause an overhang on the market and prevent the market price of the
common stock from rising above the warrant exercise price.

Delaware law and our Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated By-Laws contain anti-takeover
provisions that could delay or discourage takeover attempts that stockholders may consider favorable.

Under our Certification of Incorporation, our Board of Directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred
stock in one or more series and to fix the voting powers, preferences and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions
of the preferred stock. Accordingly, we may issue shares of preferred stock with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributions on liquidation or dissolution, or that may otherwise adversely affect
the voting or other rights of the holders of common stock. Issuances of preferred stock, depending upon the rights,
preferences and designations of the preferred stock, may have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a
change of control, even if that change of control might benefit our stockholders.

We are also subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a
public Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a
period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless (i)
prior to the date of the transaction, the Board of Directors of the corporation approved either the business
combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder; (ii) the
interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the
transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding (a) shares owned
by persons who are directors and also officers and (b) shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee
participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered
in a tender or exchange offer; or (iii) on or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is
approved by the Board of Directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by
written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by
the interested stockholder.

We are not subject to certain corporate governance provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Since our common stock is not listed for trading on a national securities exchange, we are not subject to
certain of the corporate governance requirements established by the national securities exchanges pursuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. These include rules relating to independent directors, director nomination, audit and
compensation committees, retention of audit committee financial expert and the adoption of a code of ethics. Unless
we voluntarily elect to fully comply with those obligations, which we have not done to date, the protections that
these corporate governance provisions were enacted to provide will not exist with respect to us. While we may apply
to have our securities listed for trading on a national securities exchange in the future, which would require us to
fully comply with those obligations, we cannot assure you that we will make such application, that we would be able
to satisfy applicable listing standards, or if we did satisfy such standards, that we would be successful in continuing
to meet such listing standards. Even if we were listed on a national securities exchange as a controlled company, we
would not be subject to certain corporate governance requirements.

If we fail to remain current on our reporting requirements, we could be removed from the OTCQOB, which would
limit the ability of broker-dealers to sell our common stock and the ability of stockholders to sell their common stock
in the secondary market.

Companies trading on the OTCQB must be reporting issuers under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, and
must be current in their filings under the Exchange Act to maintain price quotation privileges on the OTCQB. If we
fail to remain current on our reporting requirements, we could be removed from the OTCQB. As a result, the
liquidity for our common stock could be adversely affected by limiting the ability of broker-dealers to sell our
common stock and the ability of stockholders to sell their common stock in the secondary market.
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We do not expect to pay dividends and stockholders should not expect to receive dividends.

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock in the past, and do not anticipate that we will declare
or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, stockholders will only realize an economic gain on
their investment in our common stock if the price appreciates. Stockholders should not purchase our common stock
expecting to receive cash dividends. Because we currently do not pay dividends, and there may be limited trading in
our common stock, stockholders may not have any manner to liquidate or receive any payment on their common
stock. Therefore, our failure to pay dividends may cause stockholders to not see any return on their common stock
even if we are successful in our business operations. In addition, because we do not pay dividends we may have
trouble raising additional funds which could affect our ability to expand our business operations.

We have incurred and will continue to incur substantial costs as a result of being a reporting company.

We have faced and will continue to face substantial legal, accounting, administrative and other costs as a
result of being a publicly reporting company. In addition to the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, rules
implemented by the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board have required changes in the
corporate governance practices of public companies. We expect these rules and regulations to increase our legal and
financial compliance costs and to make legal, accounting and administrative activities more time-consuming and
costly. For example, we intend to add independent directors to form an independent audit committee and adopt
policies regarding internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. We are also
incurring higher costs to obtain directors’ and officers’ insurance than in prior periods. In addition, we may identify
and incur additional costs and expenses associated with being a publicly held company.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that they might occur,
could reduce the price that our common stock might otherwise attain and may dilute your voting power and your
ownership interest in us.

The price of our common stock could decline if there are substantial sales of our common stock,
particularly sales by our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders, or if there is a large number of
shares of our common stock available for sale.

We may issue shares of our common stock or securities convertible into our common stock from time to
time in the future in connection with financings, acquisitions, investments or otherwise. Any such issuance could
result in ownership dilution to our existing stockholders and cause the trading price of our common stock to decline.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive office is located at 462 7th Avenue, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10018. We currently
do not own any real property. We lease approximately 9,000 square feet of office space, and our office rental
expense on a monthly basis is approximately $25,000. The office lease term for our principal executive office runs
through March 2015. Our wholly owned subsidiaries, SNAP Mobile Limited and eTwine Inc., also operate out of
our principal executive office.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which we are a party or of which any of our property is
the subject.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol “STVI.” The following table sets forth the
range of the quarterly high and low bid price information for the fiscal quarters indicated as reported by the
OTCQB.

High Bid* ($) Low Bid* ($)
2013
Fourth QUarter . .. ..ovvutt ettt et $091 $0.35
Third QUAItET ..ottt i it e ie et eieaieeanaanns 1.14 0.52
SecoNd QUAITET .. vv ittt ettt ettt ei et et eanneeanneannns 0.84 0.40
S T A0 11T 1< 1.31 0.55
2012
Fourth QUarter .. ....ouvtit i eeeeans $1.30 $0.51
53 O T ) P 1.51 0.96
Second QUATTET .. vvune ettt ettt it e i et eeieeeneeanneannes 1.95 1.02
L T A0 11T < o PP 2.37 0.62
* The over-the-counter market quotations of the bid prices reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commission,

and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

The market price of our common stock is subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in our
quarterly operating results, general trends in the market, and other factors, over many of which we have little or no
control. In addition, broad market fluctuations, as well as general economic, business and political conditions, may
adversely affect the market for our common stock, regardless of our actual or projected performance.

Holders

As of February 28, 2014, there were approximately 28 holders of record of our common stock. This does
not reflect the number of persons or entities who held stock in nominee or street name through various brokerage
firms.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate paying any
dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any
future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business. Any future determination to declare dividends
will be subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on various factors, including applicable
Delaware law, future earnings, capital requirements, results of operations and any other relevant factors.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Employee Service

On December 14, 2011, we issued 4,250,000 shares of common stock to our Founder and Chief Executive
Officer as compensation for serving as our President and Chief Executive Officer. Such shares were issued pursuant
to an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

On August 20, 2012, we issued 75,000 shares of common stock to a current employee pursuant to the
exercise of a stock option with an exercise price of $0.33 per share in exchange for proceeds of $24,750. The
issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, pursuant to Section
4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On December 17, 2012, we issued 50,000 shares of common stock to a former employee pursuant to the
exercise of a stock option with an exercise price of $0.22 per share in exchange for proceeds of $11,000. The
issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Section
4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering.
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On December 26, 2012, we issued an aggregate of 45,000 shares of common stock to a current employee
and a former employee pursuant to the exercise of stock options with an exercise price of $0.33 per share in
exchange for proceeds of $14,850. The issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On December 27, 2012, we issued an aggregate of 82,565 shares of common stock to a current employee
pursuant to the cashless exercise of stock options to purchase an aggregate of 300,000 shares of common stock. The
issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Section
4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On April 10, 2013, we issued 5,000,000 restricted shares of common stock to our President and Chief
Executive Officer in connection with entering into an employment agreement with the President and Chief
Executive Officer. The issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On April 10, 2013, we issued 480,000 restricted shares of common stock and a stock option to purchase
700,000 shares of common stock to our Chief Financial Officer in connection with entering into an employment
agreement with the Chief Financial Officer. The issuance of these securities was exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction by an issuer not involving a
public offering.

Other Issuances

On January 23, 2013, we issued 100,000 shares of common stock to an unrelated third party in exchange
for the AYI.com domain name. The issuance of these shares of common stock were exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D and Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction
by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On January 31, 2013, we issued 150,000 restricted shares of common stock to Darrell Lerner in exchange
for consulting services. The issuance of these shares of common stock was exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D and Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction
by an issuer not involving a public offering.

On November 25, 2013, we issued 100,000 restricted shares of common stock to an unrelated third party in
exchange for consulting services. The issuance of these shares of common stock was exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D and Section 4(a)(2) thereof as a transaction
by an issuer not involving a public offering.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended
to provide a reader of our financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and certain other factors that may affect our future results. The
following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements
and the accompanying notes thereto included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” Unless

the context otherwise requires, references to “Snap,” “we,” “our,” “us” and the “Company” refer to Snap
Interactive, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-
looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. See “Forward-Looking Statements.” Our
results and the timing of selected events may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed under “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Overview

We are an Internet company providing services in the expanding social dating market. We own and operate
a social dating software application under our AYI brand (formerly known as AreYoulnterested.com) that can be
accessed on Facebook, mobile devices such as iPhone and Android, and a stand-alone website. Our application is
fully integrated across these gateways and incorporates the Facebook Connect integration tool, which enables users
to easily “connect” their Facebook profile to our website. Since August 2007, AYI has been one of the leading
dating applications on Facebook based on the number of DAUs and MAUS.

As of February 28, 2014, we had more than 2.5 million MAUs of AYI across all of our platforms. We
primarily generate revenue from subscription fees and, as of February 28, 2014, we had approximately 87,000 active
subscribers. The number of our DAUs and MAUs, which includes non-paying users and paying subscribers, varies
greatly on a daily and monthly basis, and is greater than the number of our active subscribers for any same
measurement period.

We believe that the number of active subscribers and new subscription transactions are key operating
metrics, and we plan to increase these metrics by increasing user acquisition campaigns, building a recognizable
brand and increasing user engagement on AYI through the development of a superior feature set.

We believe that our extensive user base, which includes more than 25 million Facebook connected users
and more than 2.0 billion pieces of structured interest data, allows us to create a favorable experience for users
looking to meet people with mutual friends or similar interests.

Operational Highlights and Objectives

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we executed key components of our 2013 objectives, including:

° We acquired and transitioned to the AYI.com domain name from the AreYoulnterested.com
domain name;

° We rebranded to “AYI”, a shorter name that is easier for our users to remember;

° We launched new “social” features for AYI that are designed to integrate a user’s interest and
social graphs into the online dating experience;

° We launched our blog, “The Data of Dating”, which has generated posts that have been picked up
in several top-tier publications, including USA Today, Glamour, Cosmo.com, Buzzfeed and the
NY Post; and

° We began to grow our active subscribers from 75,000 subscribers in August 2013 to 78,000

subscribers in December 2013.

During 2013, we stabilized our advertising and marketing expenses (at a substantially reduced rate
compared to 2012) to preserve liquidity as we continued to test and launch new features. We began increasing our
advertising and marketing expenses during the fourth quarter of 2013, as compared to the first three quarters of
2013. As aresult of these actions, we experienced:

° a significant decrease both revenue and bookings in 2013, as compared to 2012;
° a decrease in the number of active subscribers during 2013, as compared to 2012; and
° an increase in loss from operations for 2013, as compared to 2012.

We are continuing to add new features that we expect will increase user engagement and improve rates at
which users are converted into paying subscribers. During 2013, our advertising and marketing expenses were 58%
lower than 2012, which resulted in declines in revenue, bookings and active subscribers. We anticipate increasing
our advertising and marketing expenses which we expect will increase revenue, bookings and our active subscribers.

For 2014, our business objectives include:
° Growing our base of active subscribers;

° Conducting a debt or equity financing to improve our financial position;
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° Continuing to build out our “social” features to improve the online dating experience for all of our
users;

° Building a recognizable brand for AYT by expanding our advertising and marketing efforts beyond
pure user acquisition; and

° Increasing our rate of advertising and marketing expenditures to increase traffic for the AYT brand.

Sources of Revenue

We operate AYI so that users can utilize the application and search for matches for free. We generate
revenue primarily when users purchase a subscription to obtain unlimited messaging and certain other premium
features on our application. We also generate a small portion of our revenue through micro-transactions that allow
users to access certain other premium features and advertisements on our application.

Subscription. We provide our users with the opportunity to purchase a subscription that provides for
unlimited messaging and other premium features for the length of the subscription term. We believe that users
choose to become paid subscribers to better communicate with potential matches and to enhance the online dating
experience. We believe that users are more likely to purchase subscriptions when they have mutual friends or similar
interests with other users.

Facebook is currently the primary platform for our application. The majority of our revenue is generated
from subscriptions originating through the Facebook platform, and a significant amount of our revenue is being
generated from subscriptions through mobile platforms.

Users can purchase subscriptions through various payment methods including credit card, electronic check,
PayPal, Fortumo, or as an In-App purchase through Apple Inc.’s iPhone App Store. Pursuant to Apple Inc.’s terms
of service, Apple Inc. retains 30% of the revenue that is generated from sales on our iPhone application through In-
App purchases in the United States.

We recognize revenue from monthly premium subscription fees in the month in which the services are
provided during the subscription term.

Micro-transactions. We introduced micro-transactions in August 2012 in conjunction with the launch of
the redesigned AYT application to allow users to access certain premium features by paying for such features
without purchasing a recurring subscription. While micro-transactions are not currently a significant driver of
revenue, we believe that such micro-transactions may increase user engagement with the application and the
likelihood that users will become a paid subscriber. Revenue from micro-transactions is recognized over a two-
month period.

Advertising. Advertising revenue is a small portion of our revenue and primarily consists of revenue from
our display ads. We generally report our advertising revenue net of amounts due to agencies, brokers and
counterparties. The Company recognizes advertising revenue as earned on a click-through, impression, registration
or subscription basis. When a user clicks an advertisement (CPC basis), views an advertisement impression (CPM
basis), registers for an external website via an advertisement clicked on through the Company’s application (CPA
basis), or clicks on an offer to subscribe to premium features on the Company’s applications, the contract amount is
recognized as revenue.

In December 2013, the Company entered into a three month partnership with Match.com L.L.C, whereby
the Company received an upfront payment in exchange for developing various integrations of Match.com L.L.C’s
dating properties into the core AYI.com experience. The upfront payment was recognized on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2013 as deferred advertising revenue and will be amortized on the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations ratably upon the commencement of the three month term
commencing on February 14, 2014.

Costs and Expenses

Programming, hosting and technology. Our programming, hosting and technology expense includes salary
and stock-based compensation for our engineers and developers, data center, domain name and other hosting
expenses and software licensing fees and various other technology related expenses.
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Compensation. Our compensation expense includes salary and stock-based compensation for management
and employees (other than expense for engineers and developers recorded in programming, hosting and technology
expenses above).

Professional fees. Our professional fees include fees paid to our independent accounting firm, legal
expenses and various other professional fees and expenses incurred in our business.

Advertising and marketing. Our advertising and marketing expense consists of online advertising, primarily
consisting of user acquisition campaigns. We execute these campaigns through affiliate or affiliate networks that
advertise or promote our application and earn a fee whenever visitors click through their advertisement to our
application or website and create a profile on our application. For our user acquisition campaigns, we pay to market
and advertise our application across the Internet, including on Facebook and other third party platforms.

General and administrative. Our general and administrative expense includes investor relations, public
relations, credit card processing fees, overhead and various other employee related expenses.

Non-Operating Expenses

Gain (loss) on change in fair value of warrants. Our outstanding warrants are considered derivative
instruments that require liability classification and mark-to-market accounting. Our warrant liability is marked-to-
market at the end of each reporting period on our Consolidated Balance Sheet, with the changes in fair value
reported in earnings on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We have included the mark-to-market
adjustment on warranty liability as a non-operating expense as we do not believe that it is indicative of our core
operating results.

We use a custom model that, at each measurement date, calculates the fair value of the warrant liability
using a Monte-Carlo style simulation that uses the following assumptions at each valuation date: (i) closing stock
price, (ii) contractual exercise price, (iii) remaining contractual term, (iv) historical volatility of the stock prices, (v)
an adjusted volatility that incorporates a 10% incremental discount rate premium (a reduction of the volatility
estimate) to reflect the lack of marketability of the warrants and (vi) risk-free interest rates that are commensurate
with the term of the warrant.

An increase or decrease in the fair value of the warrant liability will increase or decrease the amount of our
earnings, respectively, separate from income or loss from operations. The primary cause of the change in the fair
value of the warrant liability is the value of our common stock. If our common stock price goes up, the value of
these derivatives will generally increase and if our common stock price goes down, the value of these derivatives
will generally decrease.

Key Metrics

Our management relies on certain performance indicators to manage and evaluate our business. The key
performance indicators set forth below help us evaluate growth trends, establish budgets, measure the effectiveness
of our advertising and marketing efforts and assess operational efficiencies. We discuss total revenues and net cash
used in operating activities under “Results of Operations” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below. Deferred
revenue and bookings, additional measures of our performance, are also discussed below.

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
TOtAl TEVEIIUES & e vttt et ettt ettt ettt ee it eeaannneeeens $ 12,610,092 $19,246,736
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
Deferred subscription revenue (at period end)..........covvviiiiiinan... $ 1,826,771 $ 2,524,229
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data:
Net cash used in operating aCtivities . .......coveuenreeneeneneeneneenns $ (4,174,187) $ (3,401,191)

Deferred Subscription Revenue

Revenues from multi-month subscriptions are recognized over the length of the subscription term rather
than when the subscription is purchased. Because a significant amount of our subscription sales occurred from
subscriptions with a term of three or more months, we apportion that revenue over the duration of the subscription
term even though it is collected in full at the time of purchase. The difference between the gross cash receipts
collected and the revenue recognized to date from those sales is reported as deferred revenue.
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Bookings

Bookings is a financial measure representing the aggregate dollar value of subscription fees and micro-
transactions received during the period but is not a financial measure that is calculated and presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”). We calculate bookings as
subscription revenue recognized during the period plus the change in deferred revenue recognized during the period.
We record subscription revenue from subscription fees and micro-transactions as deferred revenue and then
recognize that revenue ratably over the length of the subscription term. We use bookings internally in analyzing our
financial results to assess operational performance and to assess the effectiveness of, and plan future, user
acquisition campaigns. We believe that this non-GAAP financial measure is useful in evaluating our business
because we believe, as compared to subscription revenue, it is a better indicator of the subscription activity in a
given period. We believe that both management and investors benefit from referring to bookings in assessing our
performance and when planning, forecasting and analyzing future periods.

While the factors that affect bookings and subscription revenue are generally the same, certain factors may
affect subscription revenue more or less than such factors affect bookings in any period. While we believe that
bookings is useful in evaluating our business, it should be considered as supplemental in nature and it is not meant to
be a substitute for subscription revenue recognized in accordance with GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of subscription revenue to bookings for each of the periods
presented:

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012
Reconciliation of Subscription Revenue to Bookings
SUDSCIIPHION TEVENMUE &+ v vt e et ee e ee e eeeteeeeteeaeneenanannenannaanns $ 12,560,856 $18,910,070
Change in deferred subSCription FEVENUE .. ..vvuevrevnrennenneeneennennn. (697,459) (614,177)
BOOKINES « vttt ettt et e e e $11,863,397 $ 18,295,893
Limitations of Bookings
Some limitations of bookings as a financial measure include that:
° Bookings does not reflect that we recognize revenue from subscription fees and micro-transactions
over the length of the subscription term; and
° Other companies, including companies in our industry, may calculate bookings differently or

choose not to calculate bookings at all, which reduces its usefulness as a comparative measure.

Because of these limitations, you should consider bookings along with other financial performance
measures, including total revenues, subscription revenue, deferred revenue, net income (loss) and our financial
results presented in accordance with GAAP.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth Consolidated Statements of Operations data for each of the periods indicated
as a percentage of total revenues.

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

TOtal TEVENUE . . .o ettt et 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:

Programming, hosting and technology expense ............covueviiiieennennenn, 39.9% 23.3%

COMPENSALION CXPEINSE + e v v veeeeeteeneeeeeennenneensenuenneeneennennenns 33.1% 18.8%

Professional fees . .......ouiniiu i e 8.0% 3.7%

Advertising and marketing eXpense . ........oovu ittt 33.1% 51.3%

General and administrative @Xpense. . ....vueveeneinentinentineneenenennenenns, 29.4% 20.3%
Total costs aNd EXPENSES .« v v vttt ettt 143.5% 117.4%
L 0SS fTOm OPerations . ... .vene ettt ettt e et a e a e, (43.5)% 17.4)%

Interest INCOME, ML, ..o vttt ettt e i it ee it eaeeaanannnn, 0.0% 0.1%

Gain (loss) on change in fair value of warrants...............c.cooiiiiiiion.., 11.7% 3.59%

Other INCOME (EXPENSE). « v v v ettt et et et e atenneeneennennenneeneenuennenns 0.0% (0.1)%
Loss before provision for inCOME taXeS. .. vvuvvrenrenrerneenrenneeneeneennennnn, (31.8)% (20.9)%

Provision for iINCOME taXES . .« v v vt n ettt ettt ee e ie e eaeane, 0.0% 0.0%
L 10 T 31.8)% 20.9)%

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenues

Revenues decreased to $12,610,092 for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $19,246,736 for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease was primarily related to lower revenues from subscriptions on the AYI
brand in the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. We believe the
decrease in revenues from subscriptions for the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily resulted from our reduced
advertising and marketing expense for the period as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. We
intentionally reduced our user acquisition campaigns from the second half of 2012 through January 2013, which
primarily affected new subscriptions, while we focused on rebuilding, testing and optimizing the redesigned AYI
application. We maintained a stable level of user acquisition campaigns during 2013, but at a significantly reduced
rate as compared to 2012. We have recently begun to increase our user acquisition campaigns and expect to increase
our advertising and marketing expense for 2014 as compared to 2013.

The following table sets forth our subscription revenue, advertising revenue and total revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2013, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012, the increase or decrease between
those periods, the percentage increase or decrease between those periods, and the percentage of total revenues that
each represented for those periods:

% Revenue

Year Ended
Year Ended December 31, % December 31,
2013 2012 Decrease Decrease 2013 2012
Subscription revenue .... $12,560,856 $18,910,070 $(6,349,214) (33.6)% 99.6% 98.25%
Advertising revenue.. ... . 49,236 336,666 (287,430) (85.4)% 0.4% 1.75%
Total revenues .......... $12,610,092 $19,246,736 $(6,636,644) (34.5)% 100.0% 100.00%

Subscription — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect a decrease in subscription revenue
of $6,349,214, or 33.6%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in subscription revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2013, was primarily driven by a decrease in our subscriber base as compared to the
prior year. Subscription revenue as a percentage of total revenue was 99.6% for the year ended December 31, 2013,
as compared to 98.25% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Advertising — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect a decrease in advertising revenue of
$287,430, or 85.4%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in advertising revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2013 was primarily driven by a decrease in our online advertising campaigns as compared
to the prior year. Advertising revenue as a percentage of total revenue was 0.4% for the year ended December 31,
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2013, as compared to 1.75% for the year ended December 31, 2012. Advertising revenue is dependent upon traffic
as well as the advertising inventory we place on our product. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we did not
actively manage our advertising revenue.

Costs and Expenses

Total costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect a decrease in costs and expenses of
$4,502,035, or 19.9%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The following table presents our costs
and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012, the
increase or decrease between those periods, and the percentage increase or decrease between those periods:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Programming, hosting and technology ......... $ 5,035482 $ 4,487,018 $§ 548,464 12.2%
Compensation EXPense ......oeeeeveeennneennns 4,177,568 3,625,117 552,451 15.2%
Professional fees ........ovvviiiiiinnnnn.. 1,005,650 703,125 302,525 43.0%
Adpvertising and marketing expense ............ 4,170,064 9,876,097 (5,706,033) (57.8)%
General and administrative expense............ 3,711,885 3,911,327 (199,442) (5.1)%
Total costs and eXpenses.......co.cvveueenennn.. $ 18,100,649 $22,602,684  $(4,502,035) (19.9)%

Programming, Hosting and Technology — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect an
increase in programming, hosting and technology expense of $548,464, or 12.2%, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in product development expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was
primarily driven by increased salary expenses due to expansion of our engineering and development staff, increased
consulting expense and increased expenses related to hosting and bandwidth, primarily to support the redesigned
AYT application. Programming, hosting and technology expense as a percentage of total revenues was 39.9% for the
year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to 23.3% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Compensation — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect an increase in compensation
expense, which excludes the cost of developers and programmers included in programming, hosting and technology
expense above, of $552,451, or 15.2%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in
compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was primarily driven by increased stock-based
compensation expense and consulting expense, which was offset by a reduced headcount in management and
support areas as compared to the comparable period in 2012. Compensation expense as a percentage of total
revenues was 33.1% for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to 18.8% for the year ended December 31,
2012.

Professional fees — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect an increase in professional
fees of $302,525, or 43.0%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in professional fees for
the year ended December 31, 2013, was primarily driven by an increase in legal fees as part of the efforts to raise
capital. Professional fees as a percentage of total revenues were 8.0% for the year ended December 31, 2013, as
compared to 3.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Advertising and Marketing — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect a decrease in
advertising and marketing expense of $5,706,033, or 57.8%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The
decrease in advertising and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the prior year
was primarily driven by reducing the number of user acquisition campaigns. We also significantly reduced our rate
of advertising and marketing expense as we continued to optimize the redesigned AYT application. Advertising and
marketing as a percentage of total revenues was 33.1% for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to
51.3% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

General and Administrative — The results for the year ended December 31, 2013 reflect a decrease in
general and administrative expense of $199,442, or 5.1%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. The
decrease in general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to the prior year
period, was primarily driven by decreases in recruiting expense and other employee related expenses. General and
administrative expense as a percentage of total revenues was 29.4% for the year ended December 31, 2013, as
compared to 20.3% for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Non-Operating Income (Expense)

The following table presents the components of non-operating income (expense) for the year ended
December 31, 2013, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2012, the decrease between those periods and the
percentage decrease between those periods:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Interest iNCOME, Net. .o ovvve v ie e i e, $ 5807 $ 21,517 $ (15,710) (73.0)%
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of warrants........ 1,475,775 (679,325) 2,155,100 317.2%
Other iINCOME (EXPENSE).t v vvrevrrenrenneeneennennns 2,962 (16,885) 19,847 117.5%
Total non-operating income (eXpense) ............... $1,484,544  $(674,693) 2,159,237 320.0%

Interest Income, net

Interest income, net for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $5,807, a decrease of $15,710, or 73.0%, as
compared to $21,517 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Interest income, net represented 0.0% and 0.1% of
total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Gain (loss) on Change in Fair Value of Warrants

Our warrant liability is re-measured at the end of each reporting period and any changes in fair value are
recognized on our statements of operations. The gain on change in fair value of warrants of $1,475,775 for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and loss of $(679,325) for the year ended December 31, 2012 represented the changes in
fair value of the warrant liability during those periods, which fluctuates inversely with our stock price.

Other Income (Expense)

We had other income earned totaling $2,962 for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to an
expense of $(16,885) for the year ended December 31, 2012. Other income (expense) represented 0.0% and 0.1% of
total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data:

Net cash used in operating aCtivities . .......ceeeueereenrenennenennenenn. $(4,174,187) $ (3,401,191)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ............c.oeeuuen... (153,403) 6,310,109
Net cash provided by financing activities .........c.oceveenenneineennen... 12,450 50,850
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ...................... $(4,315,140) $ 2,959,768

We have historically financed our operations through cash generated from our equity offering in January
2011, subscription fees received from our application, micro-transactions on our application and revenues derived
from advertisements purchased on our application.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $1,042,456 in cash and cash equivalents as compared to cash and cash
equivalents of $5,357,596 as of December 31, 2012. Historically, our working capital has been generated through
operations and equity offerings. If we continue to grow and expand our operations, our need for working capital will
increase. We intend to finance our business and growth with cash on hand, cash provided from operations,
borrowings, debt or equity financings, or some combination thereof.

A significant portion of our expenses are related to user acquisition costs. Our marketing and advertising
expenses are primarily spent on channels where we can estimate the return on investment without long-term
commitments. Accordingly, we can adjust our marketing and advertising expenditures quickly based on the
expected return on investment, which provides flexibility and enables us to manage our marketing and advertising
expense.
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Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $4,174,187 for the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared to
net cash used in operating activities of $3,401,191 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increase was
primarily a result of the increase in restricted cash and accounts receivables. These uses of cash were offset in part
by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2013, consisted of $4,043,515 in
cash used in operations as well as a net decrease in our operating assets and liabilities of $130,672. Significant items
impacting cash flow in the period included significant cash outlays relating to advertising and marketing expense
and increases in programming, hosting and technology expense, and compensation expense associated with the
growth of our business. These uses of cash were offset in part by increased collections in subscription revenues
received during the period.

Net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2012, consisted of $2,047,259 in
cash used in operations as well as a net decrease in our operating assets and liabilities of $1,353,932. Significant
items impacting cash flow in the period included significant cash outlays relating to advertising and marketing
expense and increases in programming, hosting and technology expense and compensation expense associated with
the growth of our business. These uses of cash were offset in part by increased collections in subscription revenues
received during the period.

Investing Activities

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were
$(153,403) and $6,310,109, respectively. Cash used in investing activities included purchases of property and
equipment totaling $48,553 and $137,978 during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These
purchases consisted primarily of computers and servers during the periods. We continue to invest in technology
hardware and software to support our growth. Purchases of property and equipment may vary from period to period
due to the timing of the expansion of our operations and software development.

On January 31, 2013, we entered into a subscription agreement with Darrell Lerner and DCL Ventures,
Inc., a Delaware corporation that is wholly owned by Darrell Lerner (“DCL”). Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, we acquired 100,000 shares of DCL’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $100,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2013. For more information regarding this subscription agreement, see “Note 15.
Related Party Transactions” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Redemption of investments during the year ended December 31, 2012 totaled $6,475,000, consisting of
redemptions of our certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury notes purchased in the prior year. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, we issued a new note receivable in the amount of $34,248 to an employee and accrued
additional interest of $3,985 on the outstanding notes, which were offset by $11,320 in cash received through the
partial repayment of two notes receivable.

Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $12,450 and
$50,850, respectively. Cash provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
consisted of proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options during the applicable period.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

On May 23, 2011, we executed a non-cancelable operating lease for our corporate office space which
began on June 1, 2011 and expires on March 30, 2015. Total base rent due during the term of the lease is $973,595.
Monthly rent escalates during the term, but is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. We can
terminate the final five months of the lease with eight months prior notice and the payment of unamortized costs.
Rent expense under this lease for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 was $253,982.

During 2012, we entered into three separate two-year lease agreements with the Hewlett Packard Financial
Services Company (“HP”) for equipment and certain financed items. During 2013, we entered into two additional
two-year lease agreements with the Hewlett Packard Financial Services Company (“HP”) for equipment and certain
financed items. Monthly rent expense is $23,248 until September 2014, $16,664 until May 2015, and then $1,306
per month until July 2015. Rent expense under the HP leases for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
totaled $217,726 and $42,468, respectively.
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At December 31, 2013, our contractual obligations and commitments were as follows:

Year Amount

0 $ 552,736
0 160,306
0 —
2017 and thereafter. . oottt e e, —
810 72 Y P $ 713,042

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2013, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

For a discussion regarding the expected impact of the adoption of certain accounting pronouncements on
future period consolidated financial statements, see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
description is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Page Number
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2013 and 2012 .....cvviiiiiiiinnnnn.. F-2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31,

2013 and 2012 .ottt e e e e e F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012...... F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ........ueeiteintenniterniernneennneennnnenns F-6
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Snap Interactive, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Snap Interactive, Inc. (the “Company”)
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2013. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Snap Interactive, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 5, 2014
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SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............oeiiiiiiineinenennenannnnns $ 1,042,456 $ 5,357,596
Restricted cash ...ttt e e 375211 105,000
Credit card holdback receivable .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiennn.. 232,264 287,293
Accounts receivable, net of allowances and reserves of $37,850
and $36,129, respectively ...t e 385,370 320,019
Prepaid expense and other current assets .........c.oeveevirennenn.. 114,863 204,824
Total CUITENE ASSELS .+t vttt ettt eeiiie e eeeeieeeeeannnnnns 2,150,164 6,274,732
Fixed assets and intangible assets, Net ..........covvevuenieennennenn. 522,462 548,549
Notes receivable ...t i e e e 170,566 165,716
INVeStMENtS ... i e e 100,000 —
TOtal ASSELS ... ovint ittt e e $ 2,943,192 $ 6,988,997
Liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ....i.i i e $ 861,730 $ 799,183
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ..................... 671,142 240,049
Deferred subscription reVenue ...........c..ceveeneenneeneennenn.. 1,826,771 2,524,229
Deferred advertisSing revenue ............ooeeieennenneeneennennn. 300,000 —
Total current Habilities .....o.uuurre ittt 3,659,643 3,563,461
Long term deferred rent ...........cooiniiiiiniiiiii i, 12,058 48,340
Warrant liability ........cooiiii i i e 140,550 1,616,325
Total liabilities ............ ... ittt 3,812,251 5,228,126
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity:
Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,
none issued and outstanding ..o e — —
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
49,987,826 and 44,007,826 shares issued, respectively, and
39,132,826 and 38,832,826 shares outstanding, respectively ........ 39,133 38,833
Additional paid-in capital ..........iiiiiiii e 10,813,205 9,437,422
Accumulated deficit ......coviiiiiii i e (11,721,397) (7,715,384)
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity ................. ... .oiit. (869,059) 1,760,871
Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equity ................. $ 2,943,192 $ 6,988,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012
Revenues:
SUbSCIIPLION TEVENUE &+t vttt tveteeteeeeeeennenneneeneennennens $ 12,560,856 $18,910,070
AdVertiSING TEVENUE « « .« e vttt te ettt e e ae e eieaeaenns 49,236 336,666

TOotal TEVEINUE « e et e ettt et 12,610,092 19,246,736
Costs and expenses

Programming, hosting and technology expense ..................... 5,035,482 4,487,018

COmMPENSAtION EXPENSE « v v evveeeennenneeneennennenneeneeneennens 4,177,568 3,625,117

Professional feeS ...t e e 1,005,650 703,125

Advertising and marketing eXpense ........oeevirinnenierneennennn. 4,170,064 9,876,097

General and administrative eXpense. .....eveeeeeneennerneennennnns 3,711,885 3,911,327
Total COSts aNd EXPENSES « v v v v vttt ee et eieenteneeneeneennennns 18,100,649 22,602,684
Loss from operations................cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiennann.. (5,490,557) (3,355,948)

Interest INCOME, NEL. . ..ottt ettt iiiii et eeiiiieeeannns 5,807 21,517

Gain (loss) on change in fair value of warrants...................... 1,475,775 (679,325)

Other iINCOME (EXPENSE). + v v v vveeeeeeeeeeeneeanenneeneennennens 2,962 (16,885)
Loss before provision for income taxes............................. (4,006,013) (4,030,641)

Provision for inCome taXeS ..o ovvueeeeeeeiiiiii i eeeiiiieeennnnns — —
Nt 10SS ..ottt i e e $ (4,006,013) $ (4,030,641)

Net loss per common share:
Basicand diluted...........ooiuiiii e $ (0.10) $ (0.10)
Weighted average number of common shares used in calculating net loss
per common share:
Basicand diluted...........oouiuiii e 38,937,210 38,611,758

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at January 1, 2011 .....

Exercise of stock options for

common stock ................

Stock-based compensation

expense for stock options ......

Stock-based compensation
expense for restricted stock

awards ...

Balance at December 31, 2012 ..

Stock issued in exchange for

domainname .................

Shares issued for consulting

SCIVICES tvvvvvrenennnennennns
Exercise of stock options.........

Stock-based compensation
expense for restricted stock

awards ...

Stock-based compensation

expense for stock options ......
Netloss vuvevniiiiiiniinnnn
Balance at December 31, 2013 ..

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Additional Stockholders’
Common Stock Paid- Accumulated (Deficit)
Shares Amount in Capital Deficit Equity
38,580,261 $38,580 $ 8,256,864 $ (3,684,743) $ 4,610,701
252,565 253 50,598 — 50,851
— — 814,996 — 814,996
— — 314,964 — 314,964
— — — (4,030,641)  (4,030,641)
38,832,826 $38,833 $ 9437422 $ (7,715,384) $ 1,760,871
100,000 100 99,900 — 100,000
50,000 50 (50) — —
150,000 150 12,300 — 12,450
— — 849,132 — 849,132
— — 414,501 — 414,501
— — — (4,006,013)  (4,006,013)
39,132,826 $39,133 $10,813,205 $ (11,721,397) § (869,059)

F-4



SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt 1088 ettt e $ (4,006,013) $ (4,030,641)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . ......ooeeeeeeneeneennenneeneennenn.. 174,640 151,007
Amortization of investment premium ...........oeeieenneneeneennennn — 6,205
Stock-based compensation EXPenSe . ..vveeeeeeerenneeneenrennennenns 1,263,633 1,129,960
Loss (gain) on change in fair value of warrants. ....................... (1,475,775) 679,325
Loss on disposal of fixed assets.......c.oveviiieinininiineennenn.. — 16,885
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in restricted cash.........cvvuiiiiiiiii it (270,211) (105,000)
Decrease in credit card holdback receivable ...................... 55,029 154,547
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable. .........cooevivenn... (65,351) 160,171
Decrease in accrued interest paid ......o.ovvitiiiiniiiiiiiinen. — 5,907
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets ... 89,961 (108,009)
Decrease in security deposit. ... ..ouoeeeueeeineennennenneennenn — 19,520
Increase (decrease) in accounts payables, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities..........oovitiiiii i, 486,532 (843,470)
Decrease indeferred rent. ........ooieiiiii i (29,174) (23,421)
Decrease in deferred subscriptionrevenue...........coovveeenn.... (697,458) (614,177)
Increase in deferred advertising revenue. ........ovueveennennenn. 300,000 —

Net cash used in operating activities ............................. (4,174,187) (3,401,191)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets. ....ouevtii ittt i nennn (48,553) (137,978)

Purchase of non-marketable equity securities ............covvuenn... (100,000) —

Redemption of short-term investments ..........oouevueeneennennnn. — 6,475,000

Repayment of notes receivable issued to employees................. — 11,320

Issuance of notes receivable issued to employees and accrued

TS5 (1 AR (4,850) (38,233)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ................ (153,403) 6,310,109
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options............c.ooviiiina... 12,450 50,850
Net cash provided by financing activities............................. 12,450 50,850
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................... (4,315,140) 2,959,768
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .......... 5,357,596 2,397,828
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at end of period ................ $ 1,042,456 $ 5,357,596
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

AYI.com domain name purchase in exchange for 100,000 shares of
COMIMON SEOCK vt ettt ettt et e e ettt e e e e e e aeens $ 100,000 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-5



SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Description of Business

Snap Interactive, Inc. (together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, eTwine, Inc. and Snap Mobile Limited,
the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on July 19, 2005. eTwine, Inc. was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New York on May 7, 2004. Snap Mobile Limited is a United Kingdom
corporation, and was incorporated on September 10, 2009.

The Company was organized to operate a social dating application and stand-alone website.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
of America (“GAAP”). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Significant Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates relied upon in
preparing these financial statements include the provision for future credit card chargebacks and refunds on
subscription revenue, estimates used to determine the fair value of our common stock, stock options, non-cash
capital stock issuances, stock-based compensation and common stock warrants, collectability of our accounts
receivable and the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets. Management evaluates these estimates on an ongoing
basis. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become known. We base estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from our estimates.

Comparative Data

Certain amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation,
including:

° The reclassification of a $42,468 hosting expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 from
general and administrative expenses to programming, hosting and technology expenses.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on arrangements in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) No. 605, Revenue Recognition. In all cases, revenue is recognized only when the price is fixed or
determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service is performed and collectability is reasonably
assured.

The Company has revenue streams consisting of subscriptions and advertisements. The Company
recognizes revenue from monthly premium subscription fees beginning in the month in which the services are
provided. Revenues are presented net of refunds, credits, and known and estimated credit card chargebacks. During
2013, subscriptions were offered in durations of one-, three-, six- and twelve-month terms. Longer-term plans (those
with durations longer than one month) are generally available at discounted monthly rates. All subscription fees,
however, are collected at the time of purchase regardless of the length of the subscription term. Revenues from
multi-month subscriptions are recognized over the length of the subscription term rather than when the subscription
is purchased. The difference between the gross cash receipts collected and the revenue recognized from those sales
during that reporting period will appear as deferred revenue.

The Company recognizes advertising revenue as earned on a click-through, impression, registration or
subscription basis. When a user clicks an advertisement (CPC basis), views an advertisement impression (CPM
basis), registers for an external website via an advertisement clicked on through the Company’s application (CPA
basis), or clicks on an offer to subscribe to premium features on the Company’s applications, the contract amount is
recognized as revenue.
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In December 2013, the Company entered into a three month partnership with Match.com L.L.C, whereby
the Company received an upfront payment in exchange for developing various integrations of Match.com L.L.C’s
dating properties into the core AYI.com experience. The upfront payment was recognized on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2013 as deferred advertising revenue and will be amortized on the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations ratably upon the commencement of the three month term
commencing on February 14, 2014.

The Company’s payment processors have established routine reserve accounts to secure the performance of
the Company’s obligations under its service agreements, which is standard practice within the payment processing
industry. These reserve accounts withhold a small percentage of the Company’s sales in a segregated account in the
form of a six-month rolling reserve. The funds that are withheld each month are returned to the Company on a
monthly basis after six months of being held in the reserve account and any remaining funds will be returned to the
Company 90 to 180 days following termination of such agreements. These funds are classified as credit card
holdback receivable and totaled $232,264 and $287,293 at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively.

The Company has an additional reserve for potential credit card chargebacks based on historical experience
and knowledge of the industry. The Company reserved $37,850 and $36,129 for potential future credit card
chargebacks as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Business Segments

The Company operates in one reportable segment, and management assesses the Company’s financial
performance and makes operating decisions based on a single operating unit.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with ASC No. 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”), the Company
measures the compensation costs of stock-based compensation arrangements based on the grant date fair value of
granted instruments and recognizes the costs in the financial statements over the period during which employees are
required to provide services. Stock-based compensation arrangements include stock options and restricted stock
awards.

Equity instruments (“instruments”) issued to non-employees are recorded on the basis of the fair value of
the instruments, as required by ASC 718. ASC No. 505, Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505”),
defines the measurement date and recognition period for such instruments. In general, the measurement date is (a)
when a performance commitment, as defined, is reached or (b) when the earlier of (i) the non-employee performance
is complete and (i) the instruments are vested. The measured value related to the instruments is recognized over a
period based on the facts and circumstances of each particular grant as defined in ASC 505.

The fair value of each option granted under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2011 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (see Note 10 for further
details). Using this model, fair value is calculated based on assumptions with respect to the (i) expected volatility of
the Company’s common stock price, (ii) expected life of the award, which for options is the period of time over
which employees and non-employees are expected to hold their options prior to exercise, (iii) expected dividend
yield on the Company’s common stock, and (iv) a risk-free interest rate, which is based on quoted U.S. Treasury
rates for securities with maturities approximating the expected term. Expected volatility is estimated based on the
Company’s historical volatilities. The expected life of options has been determined using the “simplified” method as
prescribed by Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 110, an amendment to SAB No. 107, which uses the midpoint
between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term. The expected dividend yield is zero as the Company
has never paid dividends and does not currently anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.

Programming, Hosting and Technology Expense

Programming, hosting and technology expense includes the expenses associated with the operation of our
data center, including labor, consulting, hosting, server, web design and programming expenses.
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Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred.

Research and Development

The Company has adopted the provisions of ASC No. 350, Intangibles — Goodwill & Other. Costs incurred
in the planning stage of a website are expensed as research and development expenses while costs incurred in the
development stage are capitalized and amortized over the life of the asset, estimated to be three years. The Company
did not capitalize any research and development expenses during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method prescribed by ASC No. 740,
Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
of differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases, as well as net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred taxes are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to be applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in results of operations in the
period that includes the enactment date.

Each reporting period, the Company assesses whether its deferred tax assets are more-likely-than-not
realizable, in determining whether it is necessary to record a valuation allowance. This includes evaluating both
positive (e.g., sources of taxable income) and negative (e.g., recent historical losses) evidence that could impact the
realizability of the Company’s deferred tax assets.

The Company recognizes the impact of an uncertain tax position in its financial statements if, in
management’s judgment, the position is more-likely-than-not sustainable upon audit based on the position’s
technical merits. This involves the identification of potential uncertain tax positions, the evaluation of applicable tax
laws and an assessment of whether a liability for uncertain tax positions is necessary. Different conclusions reached
in this assessment can have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. Currently, we have no
uncertain tax positions.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is determined using the two-class method and is computed by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period as
defined by ASC No. 260, Earnings Per Share. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that
determines income (loss) per share for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends
declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The two-class method treats a participating security as
having rights to earnings that otherwise would have been available to common shareholders. According to the
contractual terms of participating securities, such securities do not participate in losses.

Diluted net income (loss) per common share reflects the more dilutive earnings per share amount calculated
using the treasury stock method or the two-class method, taking into account any potentially dilutive shares
outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive shares consist of shares issuable upon the exercise of stock
options and unvested shares of restricted common stock (using the treasury stock method). To the extent stock
options, stock equivalents and warrants are antidilutive, they are excluded from the calculation of diluted income per
share.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at
the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit with banks, money
market funds and certain investments in commercial paper.
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Investments

The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 325-20, Cost Method Investments
(“ASC 325-20™), to account for its ownership interest in noncontrolled entities. Under ASC 325-20, equity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair values (i.e., non-marketable equity securities) and are not required to be
accounted for under the equity method are typically carried at cost (i.c., cost method investments). Investments of
this nature are initially recorded at cost. Income is recorded for dividends received that are distributed from net
accumulated earnings of the noncontrolled entity subsequent to the date of investment. Dividends received in excess
of earnings subsequent to the date of investment are considered a return of investment and are recorded as
reductions in the cost of the investment. Investments are written down only when there is clear evidence that a
decline in value that is other than temporary has occurred.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments classified as
held-to-maturity, accounts receivable, credit card holdback receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued
expenses and deferred revenue, approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Receivables

At December 31, 2013, the Company had accounts receivable from payment processors in the amount of
$421,969. The settlement of credit card sales by payment processors typically occurs several days after the date of
the charge, and we generally receive payments from mobile payment processors and advertising networks on a
monthly basis.

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of those assets, as follows:

Software and WebDSITE COSES. . v vttt ettt ee et e et itneaieeneennennens 3 years
Computers and office equIPMENt . ......uvneetnttn et eeeieeneeneennennes 5 years
Furniture and fIXtULeS. . ... v vttt e et e e e e e 7 years
Leasehold impProvements. . .. ..vu et ennt ettt e e e eeeeieeneeneennennes Shorter of estimated

useful life or
remaining lease term

Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Other Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

The Company’s long-lived assets primarily consist of computer and office equipment and software,
furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements, which are subject to depreciation over the useful life of the asset.
Long-lived assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of the asset may be impaired. In evaluating an asset for recoverability, the Company estimates the
future cash flow expected to result from the use of the asset and eventual disposition. If the expected future
undiscounted cash flow is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss, equal to the excess of the
carrying amount over the fair value of the asset, is recognized. No impairments were recorded on long-lived assets
for the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Intangible Assets, net

The Company’s intangible assets, net represents definite-lived intangible assets, which are being amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

DOmain NAME . . .o ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e 15 years

No impairments were recorded on intangible assets and no impairment indicators were noted for the
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
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Warrant Liability

The Company issued common stock warrants in January 2011 in conjunction with an equity financing. In
accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, the fair value of these warrants is classified as a
liability on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets because, according to the warrants’ terms, a fundamental
transaction could give rise to an obligation of the Company to pay cash to its warrant holders. Corresponding
changes in the fair value of the warrants are recognized in earnings on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations in each subsequent period.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (“ASU 2013-11"), which provides guidance on the financial
statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or tax
credit carryforward exists. The revised guidance is effective for interim and annual periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2013. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2013-11 to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

3. Restricted Cash

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company established a line of credit with JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association related to the Company’s corporate credit cards, which required the Company to place a
cash collateral guarantee of 105% of the monthly credit line of $100,000 in a certificate of deposit for twelve months
as collateral. Accordingly, the Company has reported $105,211 as restricted cash on the balance sheet as of
December 31, 2013. During September 2013, the Company closed its corporate credit card account with JP Morgan.
On January 14, 2014, JP Morgan Chase released the $105,211 held in a certificate of deposit for the Company’s
corporate credit card account (See Note 16).

On January 11, 2013, the Company obtained a letter of credit from JP Morgan in the amount of $200,000 in
favor of Hewlett Packard Financial Services Company (“HP”). This letter of credit expires on January 31, 2014 and
was increased to $270,000 as of December 31, 2013.

4. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE « v v v ettt ettt ettt e et e e e e e $ 423,220 $ 356,148
Less: Reserve for future chargebacks. ....... ...l (37,850) (36,129)
Total accounts receivable, NEt .. .vvu vttt e e e eeeaeenens $ 385,370 $ 320,019

Credit card payments for subscriptions and micro-transaction purchases typically settle several days after
the date of purchase. As of December 31, 2013, the amount of unsettled transactions due from credit card payment
processors amounted to $191,656, as compared to $112,885 at December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2013, the
amount of receivable due from Apple Inc. amounted to $217,536, as compared to $201,859 at December 31, 2012.
These amounts are included in our accounts receivable.
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5. Fair Value Measurements

The fair value framework under the FASB’s guidance requires the categorization of assets and liabilities
into three levels based upon the assumptions used to measure the assets or liabilities. Level 1 provides the most
reliable measure of fair value, whereas Level 3, if applicable, generally would require significant management
judgment. The three levels for categorizing assets and liabilities under the fair value measurement requirements are
as follows:

° Level 1: Fair value measurement of the asset or liability using observable inputs such as quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2: Fair value measurement of the asset or liability using inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the applicable asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted
prices for similar (as opposed to identical) assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and

° Level 3: Fair value measurement of the asset or liability using unobservable inputs that reflect the
Company’s own assumptions regarding the applicable asset or liability.

The following table summarizes the liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December
31,2013:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
LIABILITIES:
Warrant liability .........ccovviiiiiiineinnenn... $ — 5 — $ 140,550 $ 140,550
Total warrant liability...........coovveineenernannn. $ — S — $ 140,550 $ 140,550

The following table summarizes the liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December
31,2012:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
LIABILITIES:
Warrant liability .............cooiiiiiiiiiain.... $ — 3 —  $1,616,325 $1,616,325
Total warrant liability..............coouiiiinaen.... $ — 3 —  $1,616,325 $1,616,325

Interest earned on debt securities is recorded to “Interest income, net” on the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

The Company issued common stock warrants in January 2011 in conjunction with an equity financing. In
accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”), the fair value of these warrants is
classified as a liability on the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets because, according to the terms
of the warrants, a fundamental transaction could give rise to an obligation of the Company to pay cash to its warrant
holders. Corresponding changes in the fair value of the warrants are recognized in earnings on the Company’s
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations in each subsequent period.

The Company’s warrant liability is carried at fair value and was classified as Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy due to the use of significant unobservable inputs. In order to calculate fair value, the Company uses a
custom model developed with the assistance of an independent third-party valuation expert. This model calculates
the fair value of the warrant liability at each measurement date using a Monte-Carlo style simulation, as the value of
certain features of the warrant liability would not be captured by the standard Black-Scholes model.
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The following table summarizes the values of certain assumptions used in our custom model to estimate the
fair value of the warrant liability as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
SEOCK PIICE v ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e et $0.42 $1.25
ST K PIICE v vt et ettt et e e e e e e e e $2.50 $2.50
Remaining contractual term (Years) ......ouvuevuevntenrennenneennennennennns 2.1 3.1
VOlatility « v oe ettt ettt e et 109.6% 216.2%
Adjusted VOLatility. . o v ettt e 102.5% 136.4%
RiSK-free rate . ..ottt e e e e e 0.4% 0.4%
Dividend yield . ......ooiniii i e 0% 0%

For the purposes of determining fair value, the Company used “adjusted volatility” in favor of “historical
volatility” in its Monte-Carlo style simulation. Historical volatility of the Company was calculated using weekly
stock prices over a look back period corresponding to the remaining contractual term of the warrants as of each
valuation date. Management considered the lack of marketability of these instruments by incorporating a 10%
incremental discount rate through a reduction of the volatility estimate (“volatility haircut”) to calculate the adjusted
historical volatility as of each valuation date.

ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820), Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS (“ASU 2011-04”), indicates that “in the
absence of a Level 1 input, a reporting entity should apply premiums or discounts when market participants would
do so when pricing the asset or liability.” In accordance with ASU 2011-04, management estimated fair value from
the perspective of market participants.

6. Cost-Method Investment

On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Darrell Lerner and DCL
Ventures, Inc. (“DCL”) in connection with Mr. Lerner’s separation from the Company. Pursuant to this agreement,
the Company has made multiple investments in DCL by purchasing (i) 50,000 shares of DCL’s common stock for
an aggregate purchase price of $50,000 in April 2013, (ii) 25,000 shares of DCL’s common stock for an aggregate
purchase price of $25,000 in July 2013, (iii) 25,000 shares of DCL’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price
of $25,000 in October 2013 and (iv) 25,000 shares of DCL’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$25,000 in January 2014. These nonmarketable securities have been recorded in Investments on the Company’s
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet measured on a cost basis (See Note 15).

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate carrying amount of the Company’s cost-method investment in
DCL, which was a noncontrolled entity, was $100,000. The Company assesses all cost-method investments for
impairment quarterly. No impairment loss was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2013. The Company
does not reassess the fair value of cost-method investments if there are no identified events or changes in
circumstances that may have a significant adverse effect on the fair value of the investments (See Note 15).
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7. Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets, Net

Fixed assets and intangible assets, net consisted of the following at:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

COMPULET EQUIPIMENT 4 o vt te et e et ee e eee e eeeeeaeeraenanaenannnns $ 252,879 $ 211,896
Furniture and fiXtUres. . ... ooii e e e 142,856 142,856
Leasehold improvements. ... ..ooueeueeneene et eneeeneeneennennes 382,376 377,727
Y0 77 (A 10,968 8,047
Website dOmain NAIME . ..o vttt ettt et ee e eeiiieeens 124,938 24,938
IV EDSIEE COSES & v vttt ettt ettt ettt et e e ettt e 40,500 40,500
Total fIXEd ASSEES. vttt ettt ettt e e 954,517 805,964
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization............covvenunn... (432,055) (257,415)
Total fixed assets and intangible assets, net..........cooevevieinnennenn.. $ 522,462 $ 548,549

The Company only holds fixed assets in the United States. Depreciation and amortization expense was
$174,640 and $151,007 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

8. Notes Receivable

At December 31, 2013, the Company had notes receivable in the aggregate amount of $170,566 due from
three former employees. The Company paid taxes on stock-based compensation on these employees’ behalf during
2011 and 2012 in exchange for these notes, and the outstanding amounts on the notes are secured by pledged stock
certificates. The notes are due at various times during 2021-2023 and bear interest rates between 2.31% and 3.57%
per annum.

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following at:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Compensation and benefits. . .......oouiuiiiiniieiiiieiiieieannanns $ 499,500 $ 39,344
Deferred rent . ...ttt e e 37,463 30,354
Professional fEES . ...vvvt it e 134,179 163,500
Other aCCrued EXPENSES .« vt et e et et e e eee et eieeanenneaneannannennens — 6,851
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities........................ $ 671,142 $ 240,049

10. Income Taxes

The Company had no income tax benefit or provision for the year ended December 31, 2013. Since the
Company incurred a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2013, there was no income tax expense for the period.
Increases in deferred tax balances have been offset by a valuation allowance and have no impact on our deferred
income tax provision.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Deferred Tax Liability:

Furniture, fixtures, equipment and intangibles ....................... $ (48,716) $  (64,437)

(35 T<) P (17,105) (10,162)

T4 21 £ P (997,596) (627,056)
Deferred Tax Assets:

Stock options fOr SEIVICES . .. v vttt te et e ea e 1,230,522 1,049,578

Net operating loss carry-forward. ............cooiiiiiiiiiinenn... 3,927,921 3,237,128

Reserve for future charge backs ..., 26,037 16,674

Valuation allowance. ......ouuereiien et iii it ieieiieanennanns (4,121,063) (3,601,725)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) .................................. $ — $ —
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Due to uncertainties regarding benefits and utilization of the total deferred tax assets, a valuation allowance
of $4,121,063 has been recorded. The valuation allowance was established to reduce the deferred tax asset to the
amount that will more likely than not be realized. The valuation allowance on our total deferred asset increased by
$519,338 from 2012 to 2013. At December 31, 2013, the Company had U.S. federal tax net operating loss (“NOL”)
carry-forwards of $11,179,378, which will expire in between 2030 and 2033.

The deferred taxes do not account for NOL carry-forwards related to the windfall tax benefit of $26,128 for
the period ended December 31, 2012 and $6,668 for the period ended December 31, 2013.

The deferred tax liability results primarily from the use of accelerated methods of depreciation of
equipment for tax purposes and the fluctuation of the fair market value of warrants.

A reconciliation from the federal income tax provision from continuing operations at the statutory rate to
the effective rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Federal income tax benefit at statutory rate ................cooeiein.n, $(1,385,270) $ (1,410,724)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State and local iINCOME taXes .....ovvvrerieeir e niienennennennn. 854,100 (598,095)
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance ................... 519,337 1,994,482
Stock based cCOmMPensSation ..........eeeveeieenrennenneennennennns — —
Non-deductible EXPenses. .. v evtenrn e eineieeneennennens 11,833 14,337
(035 TS) N — —
INCOmME TaX EXPENSE vttt eteie e et ee e eieeeeaeeeaeaannns $ — $ —

The Company files U.S. federal income tax returns, as well as income tax returns for New York State, and
New York City. The following years remain open for possible examination: 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

11. Stock-Based Compensation

The Plan was adopted effective May 24, 2011, and subsequently amended and restated in its entirety on
October 21, 2011. The Plan permits the Company to award grants of stock options (both incentive stock options and
non-qualified stock options), stock appreciation rights, restricted shares of common stock, restricted stock units,
performance stock, dividend equivalent rights, and other stock-based awards and cash-based incentive awards to its
employees (including an employee who is also a director or officer), non-employee directors and consultants. The
maximum number of shares of common stock that may be delivered pursuant to awards granted under the Plan is
7,500,000 shares, of which 100% may be delivered pursuant to incentive stock options. As of December 31, 2013,
there were 3,400,210 shares available for future issuance under the Plan.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the weighted average values of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
pricing model to estimate the fair value of the options granted during the year ended December 31, 2013:

Expected VOLatility ... ...ttt ettt e e 246.4%
Expected 1ife Of Option. ... vun ettt e e et e i 6.13 Years
RiSK T INtEIEST TALE . . .« ot e ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e e 1.25%
Expected dividend yield . ........ooiiiiiiii e 0.0%

The expected life of the option awards is the period of time over which employees and non-employees are
expected to hold their options prior to exercise. The expected life of options has been determined using the
“simplified” method as prescribed by SAB 110, an amendment to SAB 107, which uses the midpoint between the
vesting date and the end of the contractual term. The volatility of the Company’s common stock is calculated using
the company’s historical volatilities beginning at the grant date and going back for a period of time equal to the
expected life of the award.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average
Options Exercise Price
Stock Options:
Outstanding at December 31, 2012, . ... ouvuiriii i nennen 4,525,205 $0.97
Granted ... .e ittt e e e e e 1,684,960 0.58
EXerCiSed. o vttt et e e (150,000) 0.08
Expired or canceled, during the period ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiia... (580,000) 1.07
Forfeited, during the period .........coiuiiniiiiii e (1,350,375) 1.26
Outstanding at December 31, 2013, ... . .coeiiiiiii i 4,129,790 0.74
Exercisable at December 31,2013 ... ooviiiiiiiii e 2,241,353 $0.78

At December 31, 2013, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options that were outstanding and exercisable
was $9,100 and $9,100, respectively. At December 31, 2012, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options that were
outstanding and exercisable was $1,807,362 and $1,179,516, respectively. The intrinsic value for stock options is
calculated based on the exercise price of the underlying awards and the fair value of such awards as of the period-

end date.

Stock-based compensation expense was $414,501 and $814,996 during the years ended December 31, 2013

and 2012, respectively.

Non-employee stock option activity is broken out for disclosure purposes below, but is included in total
stock option activity on the previous page. The following table summarizes non-employee stock option activity for

the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average
Options Exercise Price
Non-employee Stock Options:
Outstanding at December 31, 2012, . ... oviiuiniiii it inennen 900,000 $1.08
Granted ..ottt ittt e e 50,000 0.54
Forfeited, during the period ........ociiiineiniiiii it in e (300,000) 1.21
Expired or canceled, during the period ............cviiiiiiiiiina... (450,000) 1.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 ... ..ottt 200,000 0.93
Exercisable at December 31,2013 ..o vttt 200,000 $0.93

At December 31, 2013, the aggregate intrinsic value of non-employee stock options that were outstanding
and exercisable was $0. At December 31, 2012, the aggregate intrinsic value of non-employee stock options that

were outstanding and exercisable was $152,500 and $137,500, respectively

Stock-based compensation expense relating to non-employee stock options was $129,411 and $115,178

during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following table summarizes unvested stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Options Fair Value
Unvested Stock Options:
Unvested stock options outstanding at December 31,2012................... 2,353,591 $0.99
(€ ' =1« RS 1,684,960 0.57
V53] £ A (799,739) 0.80
Forfeited, during the period .......c.ooiiiiiiiiii i ea e (1,350,375) 0.90
Unvested stock options outstanding at December 31,2013 ................... 1,888,437 $0.57
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There was $1,044,158 and $1,846,201 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
stock options at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average remaining vesting period of 2.85 and 2.58 years, respectively.

At December 31, 2013, there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested non-
employee stock options. At December 31, 2012, there was $419,206 of total unrecognized compensation expense
related to unvested non-employee stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of 1.57 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

The following table summarizes restricted stock award activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
RSAs Fair Value
Restricted Stock Awards:
Outstanding at December 31, 2012, .. ..ottt 5,175,000 $0.61
Granted ..ottt ettt e e e 5,730,000 0.52
51T £ (50,000) 0.61
Outstanding at December 31, 2013, ... . .ottt iiienens 10,855,000 $0.56

At December 31, 2013, there was $4,930,101 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to
unvested restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 8.34 years.
At December 31, 2012, there was $3,169,203 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 9.00 years.

Stock-based compensation expense relating to restricted stock awards was $849,132 and $314,964 for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Non-employee restricted stock award activity is broken out for disclosure purposes below, but is included
in total stock option activity on the previous table. The following table summarizes non-employee stock option
activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
RSAs Fair Value
Non-Employee:
Outstanding at December 31,2012, ... ..viviiininiiieieieieieieieenananns 925,000 $0.80
(€ 5721 01T« A 250,000 0.74
Y5 o APt (50,000) 0.61
Outstanding at December 31, 2013, .. .. .ottt 1,125,000 $0.42

At December 31, 2013, there was $402,724 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to non-
employee unvested restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
8.05 years.

Stock-based compensation expense relating to non-employee restricted stock awards was $54,721 for the
year ended December 31, 2013.
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12. Common Stock Purchase Warrants

In January 2011, we completed an equity financing that raised gross proceeds of $8,500,000 from the
issuance of 4,250,000 shares of common stock at a price of $2.00 per share and warrants to purchase an aggregate of
2,125,000 shares of common stock that are exercisable for five years from the date of issuance. The warrants are
exercisable any time on or before January 19, 2016 and have an exercise price of $2.50 per share. We received
$7,915,700 in net proceeds from the equity financing after deducting offering expenses of $584,300. The exercise
price of the warrants and number of shares of common stock to be received upon the exercise of the warrants are
subject to adjustment for reverse and forward stock splits, stock dividends, stock combinations and other similar
transactions.

We also issued warrants to purchase 255,000 shares of our common stock to the placement agents in
January 2011 in connection with the equity financing as consideration for their services. These warrants have the
same terms, including exercise price, registration rights and expiration, as the warrants issued to the investors in the
equity financing.

Warrant Liability

In connection with the issuance of these warrants, the Company recorded a warrant liability on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet based on the estimated fair value of the common stock warrants as of reporting dates.
The warrants are valued at the end of each reporting period and any changes in the fair value of the warrants are
recorded as “Gain (loss) on change in fair value of warrants” on the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Operations, based on the changes during the respective periods. The fair value of these warrants was $140,550 and
$1,616,325 at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, based on a model developed with the
assistance of an independent third-party valuation expert.

The mark-to-market gain (loss) on these warrants was $1,475,775 and ($679,325) for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, and was not presented within loss from operations.

Common Stock Issued for Warrants Exercised

In April 2011, we issued 37,500 shares of our common stock and received net proceeds of $88,125 after an
investor exercised warrants issued in our equity financing at an exercise price of $2.50 per share.

The following table summarizes warrant activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average
Warrants Exercise Price
Stock Warrants:
Outstanding at December 31,2012, .. ....couiiiiiii i, 2,342,500 $2.50
Granted . ...oiiii i i —
EXerCISed. .o et e —
Forfeited ..o e —
Outstanding at December 31, 2013, ... .. cviiiiii it in e 2,342,500 2.50
Warrants exercisable at December 31,2013 ........coiiiiiiiiinnn.. 2,342,500 $2.50
13. Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding
as defined by ASC No. 260, Earnings Per Share. Diluted net loss per common share includes the dilutive effects of
stock options, warrants and stock equivalents. To the extent stock options, stock equivalents and warrants are
antidilutive, they are excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share. For the year ended December 31,
2013, 6,472,290 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants were not included in the
computation of diluted net loss per share because their inclusion would be antidilutive. For the year ended December
31, 2012, 6,867,705 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants were not included in the
computation of diluted net loss per share because their inclusion would be antidilutive.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in computing basic
and diluted net loss per common share:

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012
Numerator:
= 107 $ (4,006,013) $ (4,030,641)
Denominator:
Basic shares:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding ................... 38,937,210 38,611,758
Diluted shares:
Weighted-average shares used to compute basic net loss per share. ... 38,937,210 38,611,758
Add: Weighted average shares assumed to be issued upon
conversion of convertible notes as of the date of issuance........ — —
Warrants and options as of beginning of period ..................... — —
Weighted-average shares used to compute diluted net loss per share . . 38,937,210 38,611,758
Net loss per share:
5 7213 (oA $ (0.10) $ (0.10)
DIlUted . v vt et e i i i $ (0.10) $ (0.10)

14. Commitments

On May 23, 2011, the Company executed a non-cancelable operating lease for corporate office space which
began on June 1, 2011 and expires on March 30, 2015. Total base rent due during the term of the lease is $973,595.
Monthly rent escalates during the term, but is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
Company can terminate the final five months of the lease with eight months prior notice and the payment of
unamortized costs. Rent expense under this lease for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $253,982.

During 2012, the Company entered into multiple two-year lease agreements with HP for equipment and
certain financed items. During 2013, we entered into two additional two-year lease agreements with HP for
equipment and certain financed items. Monthly rent expense is $23,248 until September 2014, $16,664 until May
2015, and then $1,306 per month until July 2015. Rent expense under the HP leases for the year ended December
31, 2013 and 2012 totaled $217,726 and $42,468, respectively. On January 11, 2013, the Company obtained a letter
of credit from JP Morgan in the amount of $200,000 in favor of HP. This letter of credit expires on January 31, 2014
and was increased to $270,000 as of September 30, 2013 (See Note 3).

The Company entered into a two-year service agreement with Equinix Operating Co., Inc. (“Equinix”)
whereby Equinix agreed to provide certain products and services to the Company from January 2013 to January
2015. Pursuant to the service agreement, the Company agreed to pay monthly recurring fees in the amount of $8,450
and certain nonrecurring fees in the amount of $9,700. The agreement automatically renews for additional twelve
month terms unless earlier terminated by either party. Hosting expense under this lease totaled $180,495 for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases were as follows:

Year Amount

200 o e i 552,736
20 PR 160,306
2006 ot i i —
2017 and therealter. . ..ottt it i —
810 72 $ 713,042
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15. Related Party Transactions

On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Darrell Lerner and DCL in
connection with his separation from the Company. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company purchased (i) 50,000
shares of DCL’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $50,000 in April 2013, (ii) 25,000 shares of
DCL’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000 in July 2013, (iii) 25,000 shares of DCL’s
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000 in October 2013 and (iv) 25,000 shares of DCL’s
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000 in January 2014.

On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Mr. Lerner, pursuant to which
Mr. Lerner agreed to serve as a consultant to the Company for a three-year period, beginning on February 1, 2013
(the “Effective Date”). Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Lerner agreed to assist and advise the Company on legal,
financial and other matters for which he has knowledge that pertains to the Company, as the Company reasonably
requests. As compensation for his services, the Company agreed to pay Mr. Lerner a monthly fee of $25,000 for the
initial two year period of the agreement and a monthly fee of $5,000 for every month thereafter. The monthly
payments under the agreement are conditioned upon Mr. Lerner’s compliance with a customary confidentiality
covenant covering certain information concerning the Company, a covenant not to compete during the term of the
agreement and for a period of one year following the termination of the agreement, a non-solicitation covenant for a
period of six months immediately following the later of the termination of the agreement or the end of the term of
the agreement and a non-disparagement covenant regarding the Company.

The consulting agreement is for a three-year period; provided, however, that the Company may terminate
the agreement at any time without notice and may renew the term of the agreement by providing written notice to
Mr. Lerner prior to or at the expiration of the term. If the Company terminates the agreement without “cause” (as
defined in the agreement) prior to the three-year anniversary of the Effective Date, the Company has agreed to (i)
pay Mr. Lerner the amount of the monthly fees owed to Mr. Lerner for the period from the Effective Date to the two
year anniversary of the Effective Date and (ii) take all commercially reasonably actions to cause (A) 325,000 shares
of restricted common stock of the Company previously granted to Mr. Lerner, (B) 600,000 shares of restricted
common stock of the Company previously granted to Mr. Lerner and (iii) 150,000 shares of restricted common stock
of the Company granted to Mr. Lerner pursuant to the agreement, to be vested as of the date of such termination.

On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into a restricted stock award agreement with Mr. Lerner,
pursuant to which the Company issued 150,000 restricted shares of common stock to Mr. Lerner. Pursuant to the
agreement, the restricted shares of common stock will vest upon the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary of the date of
grant, (ii) a “change in control” as defined in the agreement and (iii) on the date of Mr. Lerner’s termination of
service without “cause” as such term is defined in the written employment or consulting agreement between the
Company and Mr. Lerner that is in effect on the date of Mr. Lerner’s termination of service; provided that for
purposes of provisions (i) and (ii) above, Mr. Lerner must be employed or providing services to the Company or its
subsidiaries on the applicable vesting date. In addition, if the Company decides not to renew any written
employment agreement or consulting agreement between the Company and Mr. Lerner without “cause” (as such
term is defined in such agreement), and Mr. Lerner suffers a termination of service in connection with such non-
renewal, then the termination of service shall be treated as a termination of service without “cause” for purposes of
the agreement and such restricted shares of common stock would vest upon the date of Mr. Lerner’s termination of
service.

On April 10, 2013, the Company awarded Clifford Lerner 5,000,000 restricted shares of common stock.
Pursuant to the terms of the restricted stock award agreement, (i) fifty percent (50%) of the restricted shares will vest
on the third anniversary of grant date, and (ii) the remaining fifty percent (50%) shares will vest on the fourth
anniversary of grant date; provided, that any unvested shares will immediately vest on the effective date of a change
in control.

On April 10, 2013, the Company awarded Mr. Pedersen 480,000 restricted shares of common stock.
Pursuant to the terms of the restricted stock award agreement, (i) fifty percent (50%) of the restricted shares will vest
on the third anniversary of grant date, and (ii) the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the restricted shares will vest on
the fourth anniversary of grant date; provided, that any unvested shares will immediately vest on the effective date
of a change in control.
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On April 10, 2013, the Company also awarded Mr. Pedersen a stock option to purchase 700,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.52 per share. The shares of common stock underlying Mr.
Pedersen’s stock option will vest one-fourth on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the date of
grant; provided, that (i) upon the effective date of a “change in control,” 50% of all then unvested shares of common
stock underlying the option will vest immediately and the remaining unvested shares of common stock underlying
the option will vest on the earlier of (a) the original vesting date or (b) equally on the first and second anniversary of
the effective date of the change in control (subject to early termination or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of
the stock option agreement), (ii) any vested options will be forfeited immediately upon violation of any non-
competition or non-solicitation agreement between the Company and Mr. Pedersen and (iii) upon termination of Mr.
Pedersen’s employment without cause, the option will remain exercisable until the tenth anniversary of the date of
grant to the extent the shares underlying the option are vested.

16. Subsequent Events
Certificate of Deposit

On January 14, 2014, JP Morgan Chase released the $105,211 held in a certificate of deposit for the
Company’s corporate credit card account (See Note 3).

Employment Agreement

On February 28, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Alexander Harrington to serve as
the Company’s Chief Operating Officer, effective February 28, 2014. On February 28, 2014, the Company entered
into an Executive Employment Agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) with Alexander Harrington to employ
Mr. Harrington as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer, effective as of February 28, 2014. In connection with Jon
Pedersen’s resignation from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company (as discussed below) and
pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington will assume the duties of the Chief Financial Officer
(including the roles of Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) of the Company beginning on
the date of Mr. Pedersen’s resignation and lasting until such time as the Company appoints a full time Chief
Financial Officer.

The Employment Agreement has an initial term of one year, and will be automatically renewed for a
successive one-year terms, unless earlier terminated by either party upon prior written notice. Pursuant to the
Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington is entitled to the following compensation and benefits:

° A base salary at an annual rate of $250,000, which will increase to $275,000 if (i) the Company’s
net cash provided by operating activities (as reported on the Company’s consolidated statements
of cash flows) for the quarter ending December 31, 2014 is positive and (ii) as of January 1, 2015
the Company’s total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash less any outstanding debt, as
reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, exceeds $2,000,000 (the “Bonus
Compensation Terms”). The base salary will be reviewed at least annually, and may be increased
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

° A guaranteed annual incentive bonus of $50,000 beginning on or before the last business day in
January 2015 and on or before the last business day in January for each subsequent year during the
employment period. Additionally, the Employment Agreement provides for a supplementary
annual incentive bonus of $75,000, subject to the fulfillment of the Bonus Compensation Terms.

° A stock option to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock as described below.

° Four weeks paid vacation annually and reimbursement of transportation costs up to $500 per
month and cellular and data services up to $250 per month.

° Eligibility to participate in the Company’s benefit plans that are generally provided for all
employees.
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Pursuant to its terms and conditions, the Employment Agreement may be terminated by the Company (i)
upon Mr. Harrington’s death or permanent disability, (ii) for Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement) or
(iii) without Cause upon prior written notice to Mr. Harrington. The Employment Agreement may be terminated by
Mr. Harrington (i) for Good Reason (as defined in the Employment Agreement) or (ii) other than for Good Reason,
upon prior written notice to the Company.

If the Company terminates Mr. Harrington for any reason he is entitled to his earned but unpaid base salary
through the date of termination, any amounts to which he is entitled under the Company’s benefit plans and any
unreimbursed reasonable business expenses (the “Termination Benefits”). Additionally, if the Company terminates
Mr. Harrington without Cause or Mr. Harrington terminates his employment for Good Reason, he is entitled to the
following benefits, subject to a general release of claims in favor of the Company and compliance with certain other
restrictive covenants in the Employment Agreement:

° If the termination occurs either prior to a change in control or within one year following a change
in control, Mr. Harrington will be entitled to six months of his then-current base salary in addition
to the Termination Benefits.

° If the termination occurs during the one year period following a change in control, Mr. Harrington
will be entitled to an amount equal to a one-time payment of his annualized base salary as in effect
on the date of the change in control.

Immediately prior to Mr. Harrington’s employment, the Company also granted Mr. Harrington a stock
option to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The stock option is subject to the terms and
conditions of a stock option agreement, which terms include that: the stock option will vest 20% on each anniversary
of the date of grant; provided, that upon a (i) “change in control”, 50% of the then unvested options will
immediately vest and the remaining unvested options will vest on the earlier of (a) the original date such options
would have vested or (b) the first anniversary of the effective date of the change in control (subject to early
termination or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of the award agreement).The stock option will be subject to
immediate forfeiture upon violation of any non-compete or non-solicitation provisions of the Employment
Agreement and upon Mr. Harrington’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the stock option, to the
extent then vested, shall remain exercisable until the tenth anniversary of the option’s grant date.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington is also subject to a confidentiality covenant, a six
month non-compete covenant, a one year non-solicitation covenant and trading restrictions, which include a one
year lock up period on the stock option granted.

Advisor Agreement

On March 4, 2014, the Company entered into an Advisor Agreement (the “Advisor Agreement”) with Jon
Pedersen to employ Mr. Pedersen as an advisor to the Company, effective as of March 15, 2014. In connection with
the Advisor Agreement, Mr. Pedersen resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company
effective as of March 15, 2014

Pursuant to the Advisor Agreement, Mr. Pedersen agreed to serve as an advisor to the Company on legal,
financial and other matters for which he has knowledge that pertains to the Company, as the Company reasonably
requests. The term of the Advisor Agreement is six (6) months, beginning on March 15, 2014.

As compensation for Mr. Pedersen’s services and pursuant to the Advisor Agreement, on March 4, 2014,
the Company granted Mr. Pedersen a nonqualified stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock, par
value $0.001 per share, at a price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the
grant. The stock option is subject to the terms and conditions of the award agreement. The stock option, once vested,
remains exercisable until the sixth anniversary of the date of grant, provided that in the event the Mr. Pedersen is
terminated for Cause (as defined in the award agreement), both the vested and unvested portion of the stock option
shall immediately terminate and no longer be exercisable.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report. Our management does not expect that our
disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Based on the evaluation as of December 31, 2013, for the reasons set forth below, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to
provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Our internal control system was designed to, in general, provide reasonable assurance to our management
and the Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements, but
because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.

Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, and based on that evaluation they concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective.

The framework used by management in making that assessment was the criteria set forth in the document
entitled “Internal Control — Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission in 1992. Based on that re-evaluation due to material weakness identified below, our
management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2013 to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our Exchange Act reports was (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner, and (2)
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, because of material weaknesses in
our internal controls over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control our financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, the Company determined that the following item
constituted a material weakness:

° The Company does not have an independent audit committee in place, which would provide
oversight of the Company’s officers, operations and financial reporting function.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Executive Employment Agreement

On February 28, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Alexander Harrington to serve as
the Company’s Chief Operating Officer, effective February 28, 2014. On February 28, 2014, the Company and Mr.
Harrington entered into the Employment Agreement to employ Mr. Harrington as the Company’s Chief Operating
Officer, effective as of February 28, 2014. Upon Mr. Pedersen’s resignation from the position of Chief Financial
Officer of the Company (as discussed below) and pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington will
assume the duties of the Chief Financial Officer (including the roles of principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer) of the Company beginning on the date of Mr. Pedersen’s resignation and lasting until such time
as the Company appoints a full time Chief Financial Officer.

The Employment Agreement has an initial term of one year, and will be automatically renewed for a
successive one-year terms, unless earlier terminated by either party upon prior written notice. Pursuant to the
Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington is entitled to the following compensation and benefits:

° A base salary at an annual rate of $250,000, which will increase to $275,000 if (i) the Company’s
net cash provided by operating activities (as reported on the Company’s consolidated statements
of cash flows) for the quarter ending December 31, 2014 is positive and (ii) as of January 1, 2015
the Company’s total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash less any outstanding debt, as
reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, exceeds $2,000,000 (the “Bonus
Compensation Terms”). The base salary will be reviewed at least annually, and may be increased
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

° A guaranteed annual incentive bonus of $50,000 beginning on or before the last business day in
January 2015 and on or before the last business day in January for each subsequent year during the
employment period. Additionally, the Employment Agreement provides for a supplementary
annual incentive bonus of $75,000, subject to the fulfillment of the Bonus Compensation Terms.

° A stock option to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock as described below.

° Four weeks paid vacation annually and reimbursement of transportation costs up to $500 per
month and cellular and data services up to $250 per month.

° Eligibility to participate in the Company’s benefit plans that are generally provided for all
employees.

Pursuant to its terms and conditions, the Employment Agreement may be terminated by the Company (i)
upon Mr. Harrington’s death or permanent disability, (ii) for Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement) or
(iii) without Cause upon prior written notice to Mr. Harrington. The Employment Agreement may be terminated by
Mr. Harrington (i) for Good Reason (as defined in the Employment Agreement) or (ii) other than for Good Reason,
upon prior written notice to the Company.

If the Company terminates Mr. Harrington for any reason he is entitled to his earned but unpaid base salary
through the date of termination, any amounts to which he is entitled under the Company’s benefit plans and any
unreimbursed reasonable business expenses (the “Termination Benefits”). Additionally, if the Company terminates
Mr. Harrington without Cause or Mr. Harrington terminates his employment for Good Reason, he is entitled to the
following benefits, subject to a general release of claims in favor of the Company and compliance with certain other
restrictive covenants in the Employment Agreement:

° If the termination occurs either prior to a change in control or within one year following a change
in control, Mr. Harrington will be entitled to six months of his then-current base salary in addition
to the Termination Benefits.

° If the termination occurs during the one year period following a change in control, Mr. Harrington
will be entitled to an amount equal to a one-time payment of his annualized base salary as in effect
on the date of the change in control.

Immediately prior to Mr. Harrington’s employment, the Company also granted Mr. Harrington a stock
option to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The stock option is subject to the terms and
conditions of a stock option agreement, which terms include that: the stock option will vest 20% on each anniversary
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of the date of grant; provided, that upon a (i) “change in control”, 50% of the then unvested options will
immediately vest and the remaining unvested options will vest on the earlier of (a) the original date such options
would have vested or (b) the first anniversary of the effective date of the change in control (subject to early
termination or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of the award agreement).The stock option will be subject to
immediate forfeiture upon violation of any non-compete or non-solicitation provisions of the Employment
Agreement and upon Mr. Harrington’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the stock option, to the
extent then vested, shall remain exercisable until the tenth anniversary of the option’s grant date.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Harrington is also subject to a confidentiality covenant, a six
month non-compete covenant, a one year non-solicitation covenant and trading restrictions, which include a one
year lock up period on the stock option granted.

Advisor Agreement

On March 4, 2014, the Company entered into the Advisor Agreement and a stock option agreement with
Jon Pedersen. In connection with the Advisor Agreement, Mr. Pedersen resigned from the position of Chief
Financial Officer of the Company effective as of March 15, 2014.

Pursuant to the Advisor Agreement, Mr. Pedersen agreed to serve as an advisor to the Company on legal,
financial and other matters for which he has knowledge that pertains to the Company, as the Company reasonably
requests. The term of the Advisor Agreement is six (6) months, beginning on March 15, 2014.

As compensation for Mr. Pedersen’s services and pursuant to the Advisor Agreement, on March 4, 2014,
the Company granted Mr. Pedersen a nonqualified stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock, par
value $0.001 per share, at a price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the
grant. The stock option is subject to the terms and conditions of the award agreement which provide that the stock
option shall vest on the six month anniversary of the date of grant. The stock option, once vested, remains
exercisable until the sixth anniversary of the date of grant, provided that in the event the Mr. Pedersen is terminated
for Cause (as defined in the award agreement), both the vested and unvested portion of the stock option shall
immediately terminate and no longer be exercisable.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certain information required in response to this Item 10 is contained under the heading “Executive
Officers” in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Other information required in response to this Item 10 is
incorporated herein by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC no
later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required in response to this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to our Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required in response to this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to our Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required in response to this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to our Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required in response to this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to our Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following are filed as part of this Annual Report:

1. Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report are included in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present, or not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or the Notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
The following exhibits are required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.
(a) Documents filed as part of this Annual Report.
1. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended
December 31,2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and
2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Financial Statement Schedules
3. Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

Please see the “Exhibit Index,” which is incorporated herein by reference, following the
signature page for a list of our exhibits.

31



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 5, 2014

SNAP INTERACTIVE, INC.

By: /s/ Clifford Lerner
Clifford Lerner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Clifford Lerner President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 5, 2014
Clifford Lerner (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Jon D. Pedersen, Sr. Chief Financial Officer March 5, 2014
Jon D. Pedersen, Sr. (Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer)
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3.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6+

10.7%

10.8+

10.9+

10.10%

10.11

10.12

EXHIBIT INDEX

Certificate of Incorporation, dated July 19, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed February 11, 2011 by the Company with the
SEC).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, dated November 20, 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed February 11, 2011
by the Company with the SEC).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Snap Interactive, Inc., as amended April 19, 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company filed April 25, 2012 by the
Company with the SEC).

Statement of Rights and Responsibilities, by and between Snap Interactive, Inc. and Facebook Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2011 by the
Company with the SEC).

Registered Apple Developer Agreement, by and between Snap Interactive, Inc. and Apple Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2011 by the
Company with the SEC).

i0OS Developer Program License Agreement, by and between Snap Interactive, Inc. and Apple Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2011 by the
Company with the SEC).

Form of Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the
Company filed January 21, 2011 by the Company with the SEC).

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-
K of the Company filed January 21, 2011 by the Company with the SEC).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 of the Company filed on May 24, 2011 by the Company with the
SEC).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 of the Company filed on May 24, 2011 by the Company with the SEC).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 of the Company filed on May 24, 2011 by the Company with the
SEC).

Amended and Restated Snap Interactive, Inc. 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company filed on November 14, 2011 by the
Company with the SEC).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q of the Company filed on November 14, 2011 by the Company with the SEC).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of December 28, 2012, by and between Darrell Lerner and
Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D
filed on January 2, 2013 by the Reporting Person with the SEC).

Award Cancellation and Release Agreement, effective as of December 28, 2012, by and between Darrell

Lerner and Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the Amendment No. 1 to
Schedule 13D filed on January 2, 2013 by the Reporting Person with the SEC).
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18+

10.19%

10.20

21.1*
23.1*

31.1%*

31.2%

32.1%*

101

First Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of December 28, 2012, by and between
Darrell Lerner and Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 to the Amendment No.
1 to Schedule 13D filed on January 2, 2013 by the Reporting Person with the SEC).

Severance and General Release Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2013, by and between Darrell Lerner
and Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of
the Company filed on February 5, 2013 by the Company with the SEC).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2013, by and between Darrell Lerner and Snap
Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the
Company filed on February 5, 2013 by the Company with the SEC).

Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2013, by and between Darrell Lerner and Snap Interactive,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company filed on
February 5, 2013 by the Company with the SEC).

Subscription Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2013, by and among Darrell Lerner, DCL Ventures, Inc.,
and Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of
the Company filed on February 5, 2013 by the Company with the SEC).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2013, by and between Clifford Lerner and Snap
Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed on April 11, 2013 by the Company with the
SEC).

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2013, by and between Jon
D. Pedersen, Sr. and Snap Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Post-Effective
Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed on April 11, 2013 by
the Company with the SEC).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2013, by and between Clifford Lerner and Snap
Interactive, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Schedule 13D filed on April 12, 2013 by
the Reporting Person with the SEC).

Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2013, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language), (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’
Equity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

+  Management contract or compensatory plan arrangement.
* Filed herewith.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Clifford Lerner
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Alexander Harrington
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer

DIRECTOR
Clifford Lerner

President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of Snap Interactive, Inc.

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

462 7th Avenue, 4th Floor
New York, New York 10018
(212) 594-5050

INVESTOR RELATIONS

IR@snap-interactive.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP
5 Times Square
New York, New York 10036

OUTSIDE COUNSEL

Haynes and Boone, LLP
30 Rockefeller Plaza, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10112

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Corporate Stock Transfer

3200 Cherry Creek Drive South
Suite 430

Denver, Colorado 80209

Website: www.corporatestock.com

ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held
at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time on Monday,
May 12, 2014 at the offices of Haynes and
Boone, LLP located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza,
26th Floor, New York, New York 10112.
Stockholders of record at 5:00 p.m., Eastern
Daylight Time, on March 18, 2014, will be
mailed an official notice of the meeting.

COMPANY WEBSITE

Please visit Snap Interactive, Inc. on the
Internet at: www.snap-interactive.com.



INTERACTIVE
462 7th Avenue, 4th Floor

New York, New York 10018
(212) 594-5050
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